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About Cyberport

Cyberport is a creative digital cluster with over
660 community members. It is managed by Hong
Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
which is wholly owned by the Hong Kong SAR
Government. With a vision to build a legacy of
entrepreneurial excellence that establishes
Cyberport as a leading global innovation and
technology hub, Cyberport is committed to
facilitating the local economy by nurturing digital
industry start-ups and entrepreneurs, driving
collaboration to pool resources and create
business opportunities, and accelerating digital
adoption through strategic initiatives and
partnerships. Equipped with an array of state-of-
the-art tech facilities and a cutting-edge
broadband network, the Cyberport community is
home to four grade-A intelligent office buildings, a
five-star design hotel, and a retail entertainment
complex.
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Cyberport is committed to building a
legacy of entrepreneurial excellence
that establishes Cyberport as

a leading global innovation and
technology hub.
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Introduction 8IS

2014/15 was a productive and rewarding year for Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (Cyberport), and for
Cyberport's vibrant digital technology community. We are
pleased to report that Cyberport is regarded as a source of
inspiration, innovation and determination that drives
entrepreneurship forward — not only for Hong Kong and Asia,
but for the global technology industry.

While we take pride in our achievements this year, we are not
about to rest on our laurels. Cyberport's vision is to build a
legacy of entrepreneurial excellence that establishes Cyberport
as a leading global innovation and technology hub, and we
intend to stay focused to advance this goal.

Keeping us on track is a strategic framework known as
Cyberport’'s three giant leaps: (1) inspiring the next generation,
(i) nurturing the entrepreneurial spirit and (iii) leaping on global
ambition which are driven by our pillars namely Youth,
Entrepreneurs and Partners. For Youth, we equip Hong Kong's
next generation with the skills to think laterally and
independently. For Entrepreneurs, Cyberport prepares creative
entrepreneurs for success. We work with them on every step of
the way to nurture the vision and business acumen they need
to make a sustainable impact. For Partners, we drive innovation
by linking people with a passion for technology and creating
new possibilities by facilitating collaboration.

This report will detail numerous practical examples of

Cyberport's new and focused programmes that reach young
people, support start-ups, and accelerate growth.
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| am pleased to present the annual report of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (Cyberport) for the
Financial Year 2014/15. It is especially delightful to have
witnessed the tremendous progress Cyberport has made
towards fulfilling our strategic plan in the past years.

Cyberport’s persistent effort in turning its vision into reality via
the three giant leaps, inspiring the next generation, nurturing
the entrepreneurial spirit and leaping on global ambition, has
brought us affirmative feedback from stakeholders as well as
strong recognition as a hub of digital innovators forming a
creative community.

To further the public's understanding of our efforts, we house
our services under three easily-recognised pillars that move
our public mission forward. From countless conversations with
stakeholders who are close to Cyberport or those starting to
learn about us, we recognise that it is essential to cultivate an
accurate perception of the wide variety of services we provide
to the local community and the region. While we vow to offer
the best programmes and initiatives to our audience, they also
need participants to give them life and energy. Therefore, we
have decided to take further steps in bringing higher visibility to
the Cyberport brand and enhancing the clarity of our service
offerings to an even broader community.

Cyberport Youth: Inspiring the next generation

It is essential that the leaders of the next generation understand
the fundamentals of technology. Growing talent and inspiring
their interest is our foundation policy to ensure the industry can
continue to flourish in the years to come. This means a focus
on practical programmes so appealing to children and young
people to spark their creativity. These include tech
competitions, Cyberport Creative Micro Fund, internship
programmes, and interactive workshops, all of which we have
and will continue to facilitate.

Cyberport Entrepreneurs: Nurturing the entrepreneurial
spirit

Entrepreneurs need space, support and guidance to develop
their ideas. The Cyberport Incubation Programme, one of the
earliest incubation programmes in town, provides start-ups
access to funding, rent-free space, top-of-the-line technology
facilities, mentorship, networks and other professional support.
By the end of March 2015, Cyberport have incubated 270 tech
companies via our programme and has grown to 295 by end of
2015*. These companies not only bring positive impact to the
community on innovations but also created some 1,200 jobs
for Hong Kong.

* Asof 31 December 2015
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Cyberport Partners: Leaping on global ambition

From our journey in the past years working with entrepreneurs,
we understand that once a company has secured its position in
the local market, many will want to venture into other overseas
markets. Hence, a global network like the one Cyberport has
built throughout the years across industries and backgrounds
can help them enormously. To facilitate the growth of these
start-ups further, we also fund their participation in renowned
accelerator programmes worldwide through our Cyberport
Accelerator Support Programme.

We also place equal emphasis on keeping abreast of the
industry’s trending topics and bringing them to Hong Kong. In
the last year, we have strengthened our efforts to support
innovative entrepreneurs, particularly in areas such as
wearable technology, financial technology and open data. To
this end, we have hosted one hundred tech events in the past
year with a dual purpose in mind. One is to enrich tech
knowledge amongst the industry and the other is to provide
quality events for our community at which they can network
and foster tighter partnerships.

With such a comprehensive one-stop platform that supports
every milestone of digital tech talent and entrepreneurs at
every step of their journey, Cyberport has grown into a lively
community that nurtures tech innovation and creativity. The
vibrancy, drive and energy are now visible throughout the
Cyberport campus. This matches our roles of developing more
tech-savvy youth and professionals, nurturing entrepreneurial
minds and their ideas, accelerating the growth of businesses
driven by technology and developing greater global networks.

All these efforts are part of a multi-year push to fulfill our vision.
We have committed HK$300 million since 2010 to further our
two strategic plans and we have started to bear fruits from the
energy, passion, time and effort we have invested through the
years. Although the frontiers Cyberport explored in the past
have evolved over time, the commitment in growing an open
and dynamic technology-based community that empowers the
growth of ideas, the development of partnerships and the spirit
of innovation is as solid as it can be.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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An important part of this process of building a technology-
driven and entrepreneurial ecosystem is to listen to members
of the Cyberport community as well as the community at large
and continue to refine our approach and initiatives accordingly.
Many of our community members believe more creative and
innovative technology professionals can help Hong Kong to
unleash its potential. In response, we have sought to inspire the
next generation with initiatives that increase awareness
amongst children in technology, encourage technology
education and develop youth creativity in areas such as coding,
gaming and mobile application development.

The growth of our community in the last year is evidence that
Cyberport's efforts are working. | am delighted to see
significant progress in achieving the targets and goals outlined
in our second three-year strategic plan, which was rolled out in
the year under review. We will continue to pursue our public
mission through our three giant leaps hand-in-hand with our
community members, industry partners and other potential
organisations who share Cyberport’s vision.
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(2010/11-2014/15)

Cyberport Youth HBESE
10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 Internship placements Mete 1 EERA W=D - 22 30 36 74
2 EESIER
Financials (HK$ million) B (H BB ) No. of youths nurtured by 2 bﬂ%ﬁ(ﬁ%/’%\m TERH
o _ e s Cyberport tech competitions/ LB EFIHEST A
Operating income before public Rt AREREE 2 train . 137 1647 2005 2372 2183
mission activities BB A 389 406 409 449 469 raning B e ' ' | ’
Operating expenses before public it AREEET > Tech events participants RHZ a2 EE N/A N/A 6,321 9,996 10,207
=] AN /
mission activities EiBH 294 303 303 300 310
N \ Cyberport Ent 55 A 2 %
Operating profit before public Rt AREREEZH R yberport En reprenegrs _ gﬂﬁ%%ﬁj%?i iy
mission activities expenses and o 56 > B E T New Cyberport Creative Micro BEYIEEEI B mE
J N
Fund t & 1 24 2 4 4
depreciation 95 103 106 149 159 \ uh gf: ° drmitted *ﬁi%i%i%( . 22 24 32 3(5) 21
Public mission activities expenses ~ ARfEariE % 14 27 32 53 68 ewineubatees admitte PRSI
Operating profit before RetfrEZ LB
pdeprecgiaiion = - — - 5 5 Cyberport Partners BIEBESEBHE
Depreciation - 209 011 508 178 149 Fund raised (HK$ million) g58s(AEHET) 2 28 26 47 198
| : BN B
S —— BB B 128 {3E T 82 £8 No. of Cyberport start-ups E?EJ?R%/E?I % 2 B8
expanded globally el EAH 2 1 5 11 13
Cyberport Companies BESAT Mergers and acquisitions &6t R - 3 6
Cyberport community members HIEEHERNEHE 151 213 274 419 606 Note: Wi -
On-site companies faRZ YN 69 79 96 181 282
Off-site companies JEEFIE N ] 82 134 178 238 304 1. Cyberport started offering internship opportunities for youth in 2011/12. L BEBE 0 RFERBERTFARMREBKS -
Active Cyberport incubatees HIWABIEE AR 75 109 136 160 195
Active Cyberport Creative Micro ISR EMAES
Fund grantees ZHE 10 34 52 98 145
Smart-Space companies Smart-Space AFIAF 8 12 28 108 206
L —m——— L/ )\ G > ¢ D G ;
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At Cyberport, I believe it is the simplicity of the three leaps of
our strategy under the three public mission pillars that keeps
us motivated, engaged, and moving forward rapidly.

We aim to:
. Inspire the next generation under Cyberport Youth

. Nurture the entrepreneurial spirit under Cyberport
Entrepreneurs

. Leap on global ambition under Cyberport Partners

Sometimes I like to think of them as the Cyberport Source
Code: the original set of commands that inform our everyday
activities, our interactions with stakeholders and our long-term
strategic ambitions.

| am happy to report that, this year, we have made even higher
— and more dazzling — leaps. With expanded programmes and
initiatives, hundreds more companies joined our ecosystem
and our extended global networks, it has been a watershed
year in our still rather young history.

For more granular detail on what exactly we have done, you can
read about the success of our programmes and initiatives in
the following pages. But the most important takeaway is this;
every day we are making substantial and measureable progress
to staking our claim as a leading global innovation and
technology hub.

Cyberport Youth: Inspiring the next generation

Anyone who has observed a young child seamlessly navigates
a tablet, or watched a teenager fix a smartphone with a few
casual taps, will know that for the next generation technology is
more than just a tool to get work done efficiently or pass the
time. It is part of their very DNA.

So, if technology is such an integral part of the lives of young
people already, why do they need to be inspired? The reason is
simple. Because deep knowledge is the basis of all innovations.
We want the next generation to be innovators, not merely
consumers. We need to equip them with not just the inspiration,
but the skills they need to shine.
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Think about coding — it is the language at the very root of all
computing systems. This year we held the Kids Coding
Summer Camp, which was part of our Knowledge Summer @
Cyberport campaign. Towards the end of this financial year, we
also started to laying the groundwork for Cyberport Youth
Coding Jam 1000 held in April 2015 which set a world record by
bringing together a group of over 1,000 young coders to build a
futuristic Smart City map of Hong Kong.

Nothing inspires children like a bit of friendly competition. We
facilitated the participations of Hong Kong youths in
international technology competitions, in areas such as
animation and robotics, which put our mini-masters on the
global stage. Events such as Hong Kong Youth 3D Animation
Competition, the robotics competition Robocon and Global
Game Jam Hong Kong all did their duties in combining the fun
and thrill of competition.

Another prong in our efforts for contributing to youth's tech
know-how is the Cyberport internship programmes. We have
expanded the number of internship locations and accepted
more applications. We had five different internship
programmes this year that allowed youth to get experience
working with companies in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
overseas. We did the groundwork by liaising with top tech
companies and arranging the travel, visas and accommodation
— so the participants could concentrate themselves on
absorbing and maximising every learning opportunity. The
feedback from employers has been entirely positive. Quite a
number of interns have secured permanent job placements in
those companies while the experience gathered can be life-
changing for them.

When these children are well-equipped with technical
competence and industry knowledge through joining the
Cyberport’'s youth and internship programmes, a spark of
curiosity can take them far in noticing what they can do for the
community with the knowledge they have gained. This is when
Cyberport Creative Micro Fund (CCMF) comes in handy. This
grant of HK$100,000 serves as an igniter to realising their idea
and turning it into a prototype.

For teams who have already developed a prototype, Cyberport
also introduced My Innovation Carnival 2014, which
encourages young innovators to promote or sell their
innovative creations. The event gave these young participants
a great deal of confidence by having their creativity appreciated
and valued by all.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2014/15
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As many teachers and parents are no doubt aware, inspiring
kids and teenagers can be an uphill battle. Pushing and cajoling
only goes so far; the truest motivation comes from within. That
is why we launched these programmes to do their shares in
lighting the spark inside our brightest minds of the future.

Cyberport Entrepreneurs: Nurturing the
entrepreneurial spirit

It is tempting to think about entrepreneurialism as going from
zero to Larry Page or Elon Musk in 12 months. In fact, for the
vast majority of digital tech entrepreneurs, the path to the top
can be meandering. It takes courage, commitment, risks and
failures along the way — and sustained support.

Our second leap is about nurturing the entrepreneurial spirit.
By this we mean giving entrepreneurs the backing they need to
give them the time and space (and yes, cashflow) they need to
really flesh out their ideas.

Apart from CCMF that aims to spark creativity, we did not lose
sight of the budding entrepreneurs who have the ambition to
carry on with their prototype. Here we offer these
entrepreneurs the Cyberport Incubation Programme that
offers business assistance, funding, rent-free office space and
ample networking opportunity.

It makes me incredibly proud to say that we have admitted
close to 140 companies/creative ideas into our CCMF,
incubation and accelerator programmes during the year. And
we are getting bigger. This year, the number of applications for
the CCMF reached a record high of 556. We expect this is a
trend to continue.
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Chief Executive Officer’'s Review (T 48%5 &

When required, we help start-ups access physical office space,
a hot commodity in Hong Kong. In fact, the demand for our
Smart-Space is so great, we now have five of them throughout
the Cyberport campus. To address this demand, in September
2014, we completed construction of Smart-Space 3F which
added 26,700 square feet to Smart-Space.

In my view, nurturing the entrepreneurial spirit is the most
critical leap we at Cyberport can take. Without support, advice
and recognition, even the most dazzling ideas can succumb.

Cyberport Partners: Leaping on global ambition

As much as we love Hong Kong and take huge pride in our base
here, we are not afraid to admit that our ambitions are
decidedly global. The third leap involves taking those ideas we
have nurtured and mixing it with the world-class companies on
the international stage.

What makes international success possible is access — access
to networks, access to the smartest operators, access to new
markets.

Our international networks, extending anywhere from Mainland
China to Silicon Valley, have emerged as a key factor to
realising success. Capitalising on these networks can take the
form of providing funds for companies to participate in some of
the best-known accelerators around the world, through the
Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme.

We also provide companies in our community with access to
global networks of partners and businesses, facilitate their
integration into new markets and accelerate their business
growth. For some, we helped to stage pavilion participation in
exhibitions to gain more exposure. Others might benefit from
joining a start-up event, perhaps in Silicon Valley. Others might
want to pitch their ideas to investors from abroad. To March
2015, we helped 32 companies expand globally. The success of
all these efforts may be measured by the HK$300 million
Cyberport companies have attracted in cumulative investment.
Of that, HK$200 million was raised in the last year alone.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2014/15
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Moving forward

When combined, the CCMF, Cyberport Incubation Programme
and the Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme facilitate
access for Hong Kong entrepreneurs to as much as
HK$730,000 in funding.

But it is not all about the cash. These programmes provide
anywhere from sparking creativity to accessing know-how that
can help entrepreneurs launch and grow their businesses. It
sometimes surprises me to realise that in a short space of time,
we have incubated over 430 companies and innovative ideas
via our three strategic directions. In a few short years
Cyberport has emerged as a world-class centre of tech
innovation and entrepreneurship — recognised not only in
Hong Kong, but the world over.

It also gives me pride to report that at the same time we have
been investing and driving innovation, our financial position
remains strong with revenue from our commercial operations
ensuring the sustainability of our public mission operations.

We will continue to put greater emphasis on areas of business
where we feel Hong Kong and the Cyberport community might
be particularly strong. While attention on financial technology
has surged significantly, our eyes are also on open data and
wearable technology. With strong financials, greater focus, a
thriving entrepreneurial environment and strong global
networks, Cyberport is well-positioned to continue pursuing
our strategic plan and our goal of creating a vibrant
environment for the development of technology-focused
businesses.

Herman LAM Heung-yeung
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Nurturing Innovation,
Inspiring the Future

This infographic portrays the fruits of Cyberport’'s commitment
to cultivating innovation and enabling start-ups to create the
future together with their fullest potential. Through our
all-rounded support and international network, we strive to
inspire the next generation, nurture the entrepreneurial spirit in

Hong Kong, and empower start-ups to leap onto the global stage.
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Chairman

Paul CHOW Man-yiu, GBS, SBS, JP

Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company
Limited

Mr Paul Chow retired as the Chief Executive and Executive
Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited in
January 2010. Prior to this, he was the Chief Executive, Asia
Pacific (ex-Japan) Region, of HSBC Asset Management (Hong
Kong) Limited from April 1997 to April 2003 as well as the Chief
Executive of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the Hong
Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited from October 1991
to January 1997 and from January 1990 to October 1991
respectively.

Mr Chow is currently an independent non-executive director of
the Bank of China Limited, an independent non-executive
director of China Mobile Limited, an independent non-executive
director of Julius Baer Group Ltd. and Bank Julius Baer & Co.
Ltd., a member of the Advisory Committee on Innovation and
Technology of the HKSAR Government and a member of the
Asian Advisory Committee of AustralianSuper Pty Limited.

Board Members

Philip CHAN Ching-ho, BBS

Deputy President and Provost of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University

Professor Philip Chan is the Deputy President and Provost of
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Professor Chan
received his Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering (Highest Honor) from University of California at
Davis, and obtained a Master of Science degree and a Doctor of
Philosophy degree in Electrical Engineering from University of
Illinois at Urbana-Champaign (UIUC). He taught at UIUC and
then joined Intel Corporation in the US.

Professor Chan joined The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in 1991 as a founding member, and served as
the Head of the Department of Electronic and Computer
Engineering, Director of Nanoelectronics Fabrication Facility,
and Dean of Engineering. He is a Fellow of Hong Kong
Institution of Engineering, a Fellow of the Institute of Electrical
and Electronic Engineers and a Fellow of Hong Kong Academy
of Engineering Sciences.

Professor Chan advised the HKSAR Government on the setting
up of Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology Research
Institute Company Limited (ASTRI) and is currently a Director
and the Chairman of the Technology Committee of ASTRI. He
is also a member of the Working Group on Manufacturing
Industries, Innovative Technology, and Cultural and Creative
Industries under the Economic Development Commission.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2014/15
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Board Members (continued)

Humphrey CHOI Chor-ching, JP
Partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers

Humphrey Choi is PwC's China, Hong Kong and Asia Pacific
Assurance Leader and a core member of PwC's Global
Assurance Leadership Team. He is a member of PwC's China
and Hong Kong's Management Board and a member of PwC
China, Hong Kong, Singapore and Taiwan's Executive Board.

Humphrey has years of audit and advisory experience, and
works with a wide range of international and local clients. He
has tremendous experience in helping companies list on the
Hong Kong and overseas stock exchanges. Over the years, he
has also played key leadership roles as the Hong Kong Markets
Leader, China and Hong Kong Middle Market Leader, a member
of the Global Middle Market Leadership Team and a member of
the China and Hong Kong's Board of Partners.

Mr Choi is currently a member of the Administrative Appeals
Board and a Director of Hong Kong Applied Science and
Technology Research Institute Company Limited.

Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak
Partner of CWCC

Ms Rosanna Choi is a CWCC CPA partner and audit specialist,
leading one of the audit teams. She chairs the firm’s Training
Committee and IT Committee, enhancing staff skills and
productivity, and the effective use of information technology.

Ms Choi is the Past Chairman of ACCA Hong Kong, has been
serving the global body for professional accountants as a Hong
Kong Committee member since 2002. She is currently a
member of the ACCA (Global) Council and the Chairperson of
its Global SME Forum.

Ms Choi is also an Executive Committee member of Social
Venture Hong Kong, a Council member of Hong Kong Baptist
University, and the Vice-chairperson of its Finance Committee,
and an Audit Committee member of the Urban Renewal
Authority.
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Board Members (continued)

Susie HO Shuk-yee, JP

Permanent Secretary for Commerce & Economic
Development (Communications & Technology)

Ms Susie Ho was Deputy Secretary for Financial Services (later
renamed Deputy Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury (Financial Services)) from July 1999 to October 2003,
Deputy Secretary for Health, Welfare and Food (Welfare) from
October 2003 to July 2004, and Deputy Secretary for Health,
Welfare and Food (Health) from July 2004 to November 2006.
She was Director of Administration and Development in the
Department of Justice from November 2006 to April 2012. She
was Commissioner for Transport from July to early October
2012. Ms Ho has taken up the appointment of Permanent
Secretary for Commerce and Economic Development
(Communications and Technology) since 8 October 2012.

LAU Chun-kong
(Appointed on 5 June 2015)

International Director of Jones Lang LaSalle Limited

Mr C K Lau is an International Director of Jones Lang LaSalle
and is responsible for the Asia valuation and advisory business
of the firm. He is a chartered surveyor and a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors. Mr Lau has a wide breath of
experience in property valuation, real estate consultancy and
investment sales market.

Mr Lau is a member of the Estate Agents Authority and the
Chairman of its Licensing Committee. He is also a member of
the Land and Development Advisory Committee,
Administrative Appeals Board and the REIT Committee of
Securities and Futures Commission.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Board Members (continued)

Edwin LEE Kan-hing

Founder & Chief Executive Officer of Bridgeway Prime Shop
Fund Management Limited

Dr Edwin Lee is the Founder and Chief Executive Officer of
Bridgeway Prime Shop Fund Management Limited, the first
Securities and Futures Commission licensed asset
management company that focuses on prime shop investment
and management in Hong Kong and world's major cities. Dr
Lee was the sole awardee of the 2010 Hong Kong Business
Awards: Young Entrepreneur Award by DHL/South China
Morning Post and named one of the 2011 Ten Outstanding
Young Persons by Junior Chamber International Hong Kong. Dr
Lee is a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) and a Certified
Business Intermediary (CBI). He received his Bachelor of
Science in Finance and Master of Science in Accounting from
the University of Southern California, USA as well as Doctor of
Business Administration (DBA) degree at the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a research focus in
entrepreneurship. In 2014, he completed the 3-year Owner/
President Management Program at Harvard Business School.

Gabriel PANG Tsz-kit
Managing Director of Firedog Creative Company Limited

Mr Gabriel Pang is currently the Managing Director of Firedog
Creative Company Limited and has more than 16 years of
experience in IT and Creative industries in Hong Kong. Mr Pang
is one of the pioneers in Hong Kong's game development field,
and founded the famous game company “Firedog Studio” in
1999. He has been the chairman of Hong Kong Digital
Entertainment Association since 2008, and puts a lot of efforts
into promoting Hong Kong's digital entertainment industry.
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Board Members (continued)

Douglas SO Cheung-tak

Vice-President and Pro-Vice-Chancellor — The University of
Hong Kong

Mr Douglas So is a solicitor of Hong Kong.

Mr So is Vice-President and Pro-Vice-Chancellor of The
University of Hong Kong in charge of institutional advancement.
Prior to this appointment, he was Executive Director of
Charities, General Counsel and Company Secretary of The
Hong Kong Jockey Club.

Mr So is the Secretary of the Hong Kong Committee for
UNICEF; a board member of the Community Chest, HK Phil and
Bo Charity Foundation; a member of the Hospital Governing
Committee of the Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital; the
History Museum Advisory Panel; amongst others. Mr So has
also founded F11 Photographic Museum in a heritage building
in Happy Valley.

Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, JP

Permanent Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
(Treasury)

Miss Elizabeth Tse was Deputy Secretary for the Treasury
(later renamed Deputy Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury (Treasury)) from July 1999 to April 2006, Director of
Administration from April 2006 to October 2007, Permanent
Secretary of the Chief Executive's Office from October 2007 to
April 2010 and Permanent Secretary for Commerce and
Economic Development (Communications and Technology)
from 26 April 2010 to 24 July 2012. She has taken up the
appointment of Permanent Secretary for Financial Services
and the Treasury (Treasury) since 25 July 2012.

Alfred WONG Kwok-kuen

Mr Alfred Wong was the Chief Technology Officer and Head of
Information Technology Division of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (HKEXx) since April 2004 until he retired in
September 2010. Earlier in his career, Mr Wong had held
several other senior IT positions at the HKEx and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong since rejoining the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong in November 1992. Mr Wong was a project leader at
the Australian Stock Exchange and a consultant application
engineer at Australia’'s Westpac Banking Corporation between
1987 and 1992.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Board Members (continued)

Peter YAN King-shun

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of SUNeVision
Holdings Limited

Mr Peter Yan is the Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of SUNeVision Holdings Limited, where he is responsible
for the group’s overall business operations, including Data
Centres, SMATV, Network and Connectivity services.

With extensive experience serving on a range of public services
committees, including the Transport Advisory Committee and
the Independent Police Complaints Council, Mr Yan is also a
director of Hong Kong Data Centre Association Limited, the
Chairman of the Advisory Committee for the Master of Science
in Information and Technology Management at The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a life-time Fellow and Vice
President of the Hong Kong Computer Society.

Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun
Commercial Director of MTR Corporation Limited

Ms Jeny Yeung is the Commercial Director and a Member of
the Executive Directorate of MTR Corporation Limited. Ms
Yeung is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing. She is
also a member of the Marketing Management Committee of
the Hong Kong Management Association, the Advisory
Committee on Publicity and Public Education in Innovation and
Technology of the Innovation and Technology Commission of
the HKSAR Government, and the Infrastructure Development
Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development
Council.

Retired Director

George HONGCHOQOY Kwok-lung
(Retired on 4 June 2015)

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of Link Asset
Management Limited

Mr George Hongchoy is Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of Link Asset Management Limited, with experience in
investment banking, financial consulting and accounting in Asia
and New Zealand. Mr Hongchoy is Chairman of the Supervisory
Committee of the Tracker Fund of Hong Kong, Council member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and member of the
Policy Research Committee of the Financial Services
Development Council of the HKSAR Government. He is also a
member of the Asia Executive Board of the Wharton School
and Professor of Practice (Real Estate) at The Hong Kong
Polytechnic.
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Corporate Information

Address b 3ib Auditor

Hong Kong Cyberport Management EBYISEEEFRAT KPMG RGBT
Company Limited

Units 1102-1104, Level 11, Cyberport 2 BB BB 1005 Principal Bankers FEXRLET

100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong
Tel: (852)3166 3800

Fax: (852)31663118

Email: enquiry@cyberport.hk
Website: www.cyberport.hk

Shanghai Representative Office EBRRE Solicitors
Unit 204B, 2/F, 1 KIC, KIC Plaza, 234 Songhu Road, PR BT A ERIRER 234 5%
Yangpu District, Shanghai, PRC B R EIZE S 1571E 204B = Mayer Brown JSM FLHiTEmTT

Tel: (86-21)5512 2815
Fax: (86-21)5512 2816

Company Secretary N
Guangzhou Representative Office BMNARE
A . . NV n Pagan Wong =
Unit 101, GRG Science and Technology Building, HR BN T RO & S I KB PR T 2R 163 5%
No. 163 Pingyun Road, Huangpu Avenue West, EEREAKELIEIOLE T

Tianhe District, Guangzhou, China
Tel: (86-20) 38695390

I

e

HIHBE2EIEI02E 104 E
Eam (852)3166 3800

& :(852)31663118

FE : enquiry@cyberport.hk
#94F - www.cyberport.hk

Bk ¢ (86-21) 55122815
HH : (86-21) 55122816

Bk ¢ (86-20) 3869 5390
EH : (86-20) 3869 5390

Corporate Information

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

BITIRTT (BB) BRATF]
BB LBESRITERAR
FEIRTT(BE)BRAF

Fax: (86-20) 3869 5390

N o

O

ERYEEEEERAT
37 2014/15

N
Q0000000000000




F

}hpsniriﬁd (o .

Bl Record-high

#— ﬁﬁﬂpleBz& mternshlp placements
generation
engaged /
ﬂ " gyouth
019 é%w%;ﬁﬂ&-maﬁ




Inspiring the Next Generation EiZZ5—UEIRIEN

Cyberport Youth: Inspiring the next generation

The first of our important leaps is to inspire a creative and tech-
savvy generation of professionals. We want to inspire more
young people to follow technology pathways in their education
and step up to the ranks of the best coders, programmers and
digital innovators of the world. By laying the seeds now, Hong
Kong will reap the rewards of greater innovation and more
cutting-edge technology entrepreneurs. And of course, it's
good for society as a whole. Learning technology and coding
skills translates into more than the possibilities brought by
technology-focused careers. The Youth programmes equip
young people to live in a much more technology-driven world,
inspire them to be creators of solutions and game-changing
ideas, and encourage them to be innovative.

How we are doing it

To this end, we undertook a multi-pronged strategy
encompassing training, workshops, internships, competitions
and more. Last year, we held competitions specifically aimed at
young people — and we are thrilled to announce that 2,019
eager young minds took part. These competitions included
Robocon Hong Kong Contest 2014, the Cyberteen Frontier
Day, the 5th Hong Kong Digital Game Development
Competition, BODW X Cyberport Game Design Hackathon and
Global Game Jam Hong Kong.

3 4 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2014/15
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Our first themed summer campaign, Knowledge
Summer@Cyberport included the My Innovation Carnival 2014
and Kids Coding Summer Camp 2014. My Innovation Carnival
attracted 7,700 participants with 120 children attended a series
of do-it-yourself workshops. The events gave young innovators
confidence by showcasing their innovative ideas as well as
offering them the chance to promote and obtain feedback for
their ideas. In addition, the children enjoyed this excellent
platform for learning new technical know-how in a fun way. For
example, Kids Coding Summer Camp 2014 attracted more
than 200 children and parents and thousands of public
participants. Partners in these events included local education
centres like The Learning Hands and Coding 101, non-
government organisations such as Hong Kong Digital Game-
Based Learning Association, eLearning Consortium, Let's Code
HK and Rubys on Rails, as well as multinationals including
Lenovo, Microsoft and NetDragon.

This year we put extra emphasis on building young people's
coding skills in order to build a wider coding community for
Hong Kong. A community that generates its own momentum.
Cyberport worked with many industry partners to boost coding
education throughout the city. This focus culminated in the
Cyberport Youth Coding Jam 1000 which 1,042 children and
youth were trained with coding skills and brought together in
Central, Hong Kong, in one giant group coding event.
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To provide young people with practical skills, we increased the
number of internships Cyberport facilitated and funded to a
record high of 74 placements this year. Of particular note was
the Hong Kong — Shanghai ICT Internship Programme 2014
which again proved hugely popular with applications surging
from 208 to 263. We also launched the new Hong Kong —
Silicon Valley ICT Internship Programme with interns
placements in companies in Silicon Valley. The eHealth Record
Internship Programme, initially launched in 2012, was rounded
out as a full programme this year with 8 companies and 18
interns.

At the same time, the Cyberport Startup Alumni Association
offered the e+startup Internship Programme for university
students with majors in technology, business or design. The
programme provide great learning opportunities for students
interested in launching, forming or working for a start-up. The
programme was first launched in 2013 with 7 interns and
expanded to 20 interns in 2014, an almost 200% increase. In
addition, the participating start-ups, at 140% growth, reflected
entrepreneurs’ mutual interest in working with young talents.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2014/15
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From working with talents in the creative community at
Cyberport, we understand how important it is to provide
funding to innovators to help them to take the first step to push
their creative ideas. That is why Cyberport Creative Micro Fund
(CCMF) provides seed funding of HK$100,000 for creative
individuals to turn their ideas into potential businesses or
prototypes. This year, we provided 54 CCMF grants, about one
for every ten applications. The number of applications reached
a record high. To date, we have empowered 162 new projects
through the CCMF. In addition to the local programme, the
Cross-Border Programme of CCMF helps applicants to gain
Mainland China experience and promotes cross-culture
innovative ideas. Through the year, there were some 64
applications for the cross-border programme with 21 grants
awarded.

One visible result of these efforts is Cyberport’'s emergence as
a first-rate technology-training and tech talent-grooming
brand. Technology training can help develop an innovative
generation who are strong in both technical competence and
execution on top of their creativity. They will grow Hong Kong
to be an even more creative, unique and entrepreneurial city.

Looking ahead

This first giant leap of inspiring the next generation driven by
Cyberport Youth is one with long-range vision. Nurturing more
technology talents is clearly a top priority for the sustainable
development of a more vibrant tech community. There is a
need for more programmers, developers, and digital innovators
to feed into the entrepreneurial drive that is such an important
part of Hong Kong. Through its first leap of inspiring the next
generation, Cyberport is positioned at the heart of Hong Kong's
entrepreneurial drive.

Cyberport is planting seeds now to inspire a new generation of
technology professionals who will feed both into Cyberport's
ecosystem and Hong Kong's own culture of innovation.
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Nurturing the Entrepreneurial Spirit iR E ) FEIEIERA

Cyberport Entrepreneurs: Nurturing the
entrepreneurial spirit

Building companies from great ideas to profitable, sizeable and
impactful enterprises is at the core of this vital leap. We want
entrepreneurs to have the support and guidance they need to
go the extra step in their career. Without helps at the early
stage, even the best ideas can lose steam in the highly
competitive technology industry. At Cyberport, we want to
nurture the entrepreneurial spirit by facilitating start-ups with
access to our entrepreneurship programmes, talent meet-ups
and strong community of budding entrepreneurs. In addition,
we make know-hows available to our community of technology
businesses and provide access to technology, business
matching and marketing support. Not all ideas become
winners; but this leap is about giving the best ideas the best
shot possible.
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How we are doing it

After their creativity is sparked by Cyberport Creative Micro
Fund, Cyberport provides two core layers of support for
entrepreneurs which are the Cyberport Incubation Programme
and the new Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme.
These programmes provide grants, support and training for the
launch and development of new technology businesses.

The Cyberport Incubation Programme is one of our longest-
running and most successful initiatives. This year, we expanded
it to include 51 new companies. In some cases, it may take
several years to turn an idea into a viable global business. The
Cyberport Incubation Programme makes this successful
journey more likely. Through this programme, we support and
celebrate original ideas and entrepreneurial drive. Participants
receive funding, rent-free office space, access to top-of-the-line
facilities, business support, mentoring and training. Just as
important, we provide participants with access to Cyberport’s
platform and global network. The 270 companies that have
been admitted to our incubation programmes to date have won
160 industry awards. Some of the most successful companies
to emerge from the Cyberport Incubation Programme are
GoGoVan, Innopage, IT Wake, Kites, Legato Technologies,
MyDress Holdings, STUDIO-R CO and Timable.

To date, companies in the Cyberport community have raised
more than HK$300 million in investment. GoGoVan, for
example, raised HK$137.5 million in a few rounds of
fundraising. Quantifeed raised HK$12.5 million from angel
investors. Shopline raised HK$9.3 million. Another incubatee,
Sensbeat, raised HK$10.1 million in investment while Spottly
raised HK$6.6 million.
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The second step in the chain of our efforts to nurture the
entrepreneurial spirit is to accelerate the growth of the
promising start-ups.

The Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme provides funds
for participants to join some of the most famous accelerators
around the world including Y Combinator, 500 Startups, Plug
and Play, Microsoft Ventures, Shanghai Innospace, Nest in
Hong Kong, etc.

We further nurture the entrepreneurial spirit by building an
ecosystem that encourages and facilitates creativity. Start-ups
work side-by-side with established multinational companies of
the highest caliber.

Our efforts to nurture entrepreneurs extend beyond providing
funds for companies in our ecosystem. We nurture
entrepreneurship, with a digital technology focus, throughout
Hong Kong. To this end, Cyberport hosted 100 events
throughout the year such as the International Conference on
Information Security Standards, Digital Entertainment
Leadership Forum 2014, Future Cities Asia, 2014 Digital
Marketplace, the Internet Finance Forum, the start-up pitch
event SlushHK and the Cyberport Speaker Series. These
events attracted more than 10,000 technology entrepreneurs,
seasoned professionals, executives at global corporations and
investors for various topics include big data, cloud computing,
social media, internet security, mobile technology and digital
entertainment. These are areas that offer enormous
opportunities for start-ups. Through these technology-focused
events, Cyberport further cemented its position as a hub of
technology and entrepreneurship of global stature with a
vibrant environment in which business ideas and knowledge
are shared, explored and developed.
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Smart-Space: A Growth Story

Another way through which Cyberport nurtures the
entrepreneurial spirit is with its growing number of Smart-
Space facilities. These are ideal spaces for entrepreneurs and
SMEs that need a quick, easy, affordable, scalable and flexible
space for just a few people. Smart-Space also provides a
community-centred atmosphere that encourages sharing and
inspiration amongst like-minded companies and people. As
well as serving local start-ups, Smart-Space is an ideal entry
point for many overseas companies’ Asian/China ambitions.
The affordability and flexibility of Smart-Space offers an
excellent option for these overseas companies. As a result, the
Cyberport community becomes highly international and is a
cultural mixing pot that celebrates creativity, uniqueness and
determination for success.

Smart-Space was launched in 2009 with 8 rooms initially. In six
years, it has grown to 62,000 square feet which is one of the
largest co-working spaces for technology companies in town.
Smart-Space makes it possible for entrepreneurs to leverage
synergies into entrepreneurial growth and also makes the
CCMF, incubation and accelerator programmes much more
successful. There are now five Smart-Spaces across the
Cyberport campus providing a home for over 200 businesses.

Looking ahead

It is no secret just how seriously we take the development of
our entrepreneurs. In every move they make and success they
enjoy, we feel validated for placing such a diverse and
substantial range of resources on their young shoulders.

We will continue to nurture entrepreneurial spirit in the future
by providing entrepreneurship programmes, technology-
related services, international conferences and technical
seminars to entrepreneurs on every step of their way to
success.
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Cyberport Partners: Leaping on global ambition

Central to the overall mission of fostering and nurturing Hong
Kong's innovative technology leaders is Cyberport’s third giant
leap of leaping on global ambition. We work with start-ups and
established businesses to fulfill their goals of stepping up onto
the global stage. To do so it requires connections to the right
investors and industry players; fortunately, that is one area
where Cyberport shines.

How we are doing it

The essence of our third leap is to provide connections to the
Cyberport network across Mainland China, North America, Asia
and Europe. While helping to connect the dots between start-
ups and investors, we also formed partnerships with many
industry giants including Accenture, Lenovo, Microsoft,
NetDragon, etc. to pave ways for budding entrepreneurs to
leap onto the global stage.

To complement these connections, Cyberport piloted the
Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme in May 2014. In the
initial batch of applications, we worked with different
companies paving their way for their entrance into global
accelerator programmes. Participating companies received
funding as much as HK$300,000 for programme fees, travel
costs and accommodation. The list of world-class accelerator
programmes our incubatees and grantees got admitted is
impressive. They include 500 Startups Accelerator Programme
and the Plug & Play Startup Acceleration Program in the US,
Seedcamp in the UK, InnoSpace in Shanghai, etc. With these
funds and hands-on support, our young start-ups can tap into
world-class ecosystems with great connections, training and
advice.

Apart from those who travel elsewhere in the world, we also
have programmes for entrepreneurs who stay in town. In the
current year, we have worked closely with Accenture to launch
the brand-new Accenture FinTech Innovation Lab Asia-Pacific
which is a 12-week mentorship programme to test and refine
start-up’s FinTech solutions and bring together entrepreneurs,
financial institutions, angel investors and venture capital firms.
In addition to New York and London, Hong Kong is the first
Asian city to run the Accenture FinTech Innovation Lab. This is
a programme for early and growth-stage financial technology
innovators to accelerate product development. A group of eight
start-ups were admitted to the programme in September 2014
and were housed at Cyberport's Smart-Space.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2014/15
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Leaping on Global Ambition E8)ZE RS - HiEzEE

At the same time, we foster global businesses to Cyberport and
Hong Kong. In November 2014, Cyberport held the Global
Entrepreneurship Week (GEW) China — Hong Kong, part of a
global event held in 160 countries during the same week.
Cyberport was a key supporter of GEW China — Hong Kong
along with the Shanghai Technology Entrepreneurship
Foundation for Graduates. The event included a pitching day, a
showcase and a career day as well as the annual gathering of
the Cyberport Startup Alumni Association.

Cyberport’s efforts to work with its community to leap on global
ambition are facilitated by its multinational and multicultural
nature. Whilst Hong Kong companies accounted for 67% of
companies housed in the Cyberport complex, there are also
companies from France, the US, Mainland China, the UK,
Australia, the Netherlands, Japan, Belgium and New Zealand.

For foreign businesses looking to set up in Hong Kong,
Cyberport provides a unique proposition as a digital technology
hub that spurs and encourages innovation. The interactions
among companies large and small are unique.

In the year to March 2015, Cyberport continued to make strides
in expanding its global networks by working with start-ups and
established businesses to extend their presence and reach
beyond Hong Kong to markets across the region and the world.
Cyberport's support extends to providing business support and
soft-landing services and plugging community members
directly into established networks to expand into new markets.
To facilitate this expansion, we have expanded our links to the
international ecosystems in Mainland China, the US, Japan,
South Korea, Singapore, Canada, France and the UK. In
particular, we work closely with organisations and businesses
in Silicon Valley. We brought in partners including Silicon
Dragon Ventures, MoDev and Ding Ding TV to host signature
investment and entrepreneurship events. Leading US
accelerators such as 500 Startups, Plug & Play and Techstars
were invited to provide briefing and individual consultation
sessions for Hong Kong start-ups. We also partnered with
world-class tech event organisers to provide platforms for
start-ups to reach out and explore the US markets. Delegations
to tech conferences and exhibitions such as TechCrunch
Disrupt SF and TiEcon in San Francisco, South by Southwest in
Austin helped start-ups in gaining brand exposure and
connecting with investors and business partners.
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Particularly significant this year was the development of new
relationships in the UK. The UK is a global centre for financial
technology and Cyberport's relationships there have
contributed to building Cyberport as a global financial
technology hub. These new and deep links with the UK are a
natural evolution for Cyberport and for Hong Kong given the
broad similarities in the soft and hard infrastructures between
the two places. The synergies Cyberport created with
Techstars, Tech City and FinTech City helped Cyberport's
community to tap into new markets and leap on global
ambitions.

In Mainland China, Cyberport supported incubatees and start-
ups to participate in the Mobile Asia Expo (MAE) 2014 Shanghai
and the SmartHK Nanjing 2014. Other events in Mainland China
included TechCrunch in August in Beijing and International Soft
China, held in collaboration with the Hong Kong Software
Industry Association. Cyberport also started working with
Lenovo Group to develop multi-lateral relationships and
promote Hong Kong's cloud computing development.

Looking ahead

In the last year, Cyberport has expanded our global network,
strengthened the foundations of previous years and attracted
more innovative technology professionals and businesses to
Hong Kong. We have connected with more companies,
accelerators, start-up communities, associations and academic
institutions throughout Asia, Europe and North America with an
eye on making Hong Kong a true generator of entrepreneurial
talent.

Cyberport's broad outreach strategy facilitates our efforts to
empower entrepreneurs to leap on the global stage. We will
continue to explore new markets and seek out new global
relationships to build stronger networks for members of our
community.
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As a participant in the Environmental Protection
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Source Separation of Waste
Department's Source Separation of Commercial and
in 2014 in recognition of our commitment to
environmental protection and waste reduction.

Industrial Waste Programme, we were again honoured to
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receive the Class of Excellence Wastewi$e Label award
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Energy Saving

!n 2014/15, Cyberport carried out major capital
Improvements to the air-conditioning system as well as
other energy-saving measures throughout the Cyberport
campus. These included on-going replacement of

existing lighting with LEDs and further fine tuning of the
chiller plants.
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Cyberport Cares T EST

T T @
Impr(_)vement of Facilities for Visually
Impaired

To pr_ovide an accessible environment for the visually
impaired users and visitors, improvement of braille
and tactile facilities was jointly conducted by
Cyberport and the Hong Kong Blind Union in

2014/15.
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World Blind Union — Asia Pacific Mid-Term
Regional General Assembly

As an on-going effort to promote digital inclusion,
Cyberport supported this 4-day event with more than 350
participants from over 30 countries/regions around the

CyberRun for Rehab — Healthy Steps in Cyberport 2014

Co-organised by The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation and
Cyberport for the eleventh consecutive years, this annual charity
event attracted over 870 participants. Cyberport enrolled three
corporate teams this year. The charity fund raised is for financing
rehab services especially towards the implementation of
programmes for children with disabilities in rural and urban

China.
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world. Comprehensive programmes included Youth
Forum, Women's Forum, General Assembly meetings,
workshops, ICT Symposium on e-Accessibility, and an
exhibitions of the latest technical aids for the visually

impaired.
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“Run For Smile 2015

C‘yberport supported the “Run For Smile 2015" with
aims ofAraising funds and awareness towards tlh
unde_rpmvileged children in Mainland China born vvitkel
cleft llp_s and palates. A Family Fun Fair was arranged f
all participants after the 10 km charity run Thegev O;
offereq participants an amazing experience.by rurmier:1
over mixed terrain from Central Ferry Pier to Cyberportg
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Cyberport Cares T EST

Employee Abundance Programme (EAP)

This programme offers a one-stop professional
services, seminars, and resources to help enhance
Cyberport staff's quality of life, from ‘physical,
psychological, personal, family to professional well-
being.
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) S A People and Corporate Development
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NEBSHRES  SERDAIZER e y / We invest in on-going training and development of our
staff in order to help them realise their full potential.
Through both internal and external training courses, we
enable our staff to hone their technical competencies,
language skills, people management abilities, as well as
stay up-to-date with compliance knowledge.

Other than gaining required skill sets, our staff members
are encouraged to take the initiative in steering their own

A . development and achieving their career aspirations. Our
™ Competency Framework sets a blueprint for “excellent”
l performance and assisted staff in creating their individual

an Abundant Life

development plans.

In order to gain better understanding of our people's
capability, potential and motivation, we launched our first
Competency Audit this year, a development assessment
to enable us discover, nurture and develop our talent.
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PlEoipa Corporate Governance Report

EU r U ra[B ‘ — Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited (the “Company”),

being a limited company incorporated

G UVB rn a n B B ' under the Companies Ordinance, is
one of the three private and wholly-
owned companies set up by the

R B p U r [ Government of the HKSAR via the

Financial Secretary Incorporated to

oversee the development, operation
and management of the Cyberport
Project.
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Corporate Governance Report L EGH S

Our Commitment

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance. We believe that good corporate
governance provides the foundation for good corporate
performance and is essential to accomplishing our public
missions, meeting the expectations of our stakeholders and
attaining long-term and sustainable growth. We have therefore
adopted accountability, transparency, fairness, ethics and
integrity as the cornerstones of our corporate governance
framework.

Corporate Governance Structure

SHAREHOLDER
(HKSAR Government)
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Appointment Z{F Report

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
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Appointment Z £ -
= i Report [
Delegation ##& Advice %

Terms of Reference B #5 &

BOARD COMMITTEES E£ZEE

Executive
Committee

e — Remuneration
HITREE Committee

FHESS

Entrepreneurship

Committee

TLEBEREST

Supervision B &
P

Guidance 15

Supervision E5&

Guidance #54& —

\\ > Management Audit F&f
< SHEE

Report &

Accountability A& & (£

Accountability EyEE T

Approval of Internal
Report &k A;SF ‘P\‘arﬁ

Fetat Bl

¥ Appointment Z 1

Audit Report & External
Committee Auditor
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Internal Audit ;%ffj{g;aéion

(outsourced)
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The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the "Board”) has an overall
responsibility for the leadership, control and performance of
the Company. It governs and leads the Company in a
responsible and effective manner. It establishes the strategic
direction of the Company and monitors its performance.

The Company has an effective Board which acts collectively to
set the corporate strategies and approve operating plans
proposed by Management. Each Board Member has a duty to
actin good faith and in the best interests of the Company.

To ensure effective discharge of duties by Board Members, the
Board assumes the responsibility of ensuring that each Board
Member has spent sufficient time to attend to the affairs of the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board Composition

The Board consists of 13 non-executive Board Members,
including two Government directors and 11 non-Government
directors. Non-executive Members bring an external
perspective, constructively challenge and advise on proposals
on strategy, and monitor the performance of Management.
This structure effectively ensures that the Board would
comprise a majority of independent members and is conducive
to maintaining an independent and objective Board decision
making process.

All Board Members are appointed by the shareholders without
receiving any honorarium for a specific term and can be
re-appointed upon expiry of their terms of office.
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Board Members come from varied but relevant backgrounds %%%}?}AXQ ARFR - WA L= /) ER
with diverse skills and experience. While two of them are from  E 313 K5 o A Z%Jﬂz,;?ﬁ BEBUY - &
the Government, 11 of them come from various business fields, —#11&KX 8RB TIT E’J%ﬁ‘%?fﬂ% BIEA R
including IT, finance, commercial, accounting, surveying and % > & & X » AEREMR - BE
academia. Biographical details of the Board Members are set %%ﬁ%%ﬁ’\]@ﬁﬁ%?'@kﬁ‘ﬁ WE20E27H
out in the section titled “Board of Directors” on pages 20to 27. ®I[EEH] —# -
Board Composition E=F M E4#E (as of 31 July 2015) (BE 201547 A31R)
Gender 1% 5l Category &5
Non-Government Government
Non-executive Non-executive
Male 2t Female Z & FEFFHITHE ERLFEHITHE
Experience on HKCMCL Board Profile 3
HERRARDEERINLR R .
Accounting/Finance

1 &5,/ 2R 1
7-9% Years & 2 Surveying

Academic AlE
3 ==
4-6 Years & 8 %

AR

1 1-3 Years

<1Years

2

1245

*Note:  Mr. Paul Chow was a director of the Company from June 2003 to
March 2007 prior to his current tenure from April 2010.
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Board Diversity

We recognise the importance of ensuring an appropriate
balance of skills, knowledge, experience, and gender on the
Board to our corporate governance. Our Board Members, with
diverse backgrounds, have both the breadth and depth of
relevant experience to steer and oversee the business of the
Company, so as to ensure that value is delivered in a
sustainable manner and the Company’s interest is protected.
The current mix of our Board Members is balanced, and well
represented by IT professionals, business executives,
government representatives and other industry professionals
and leaders.

Induction and Training

On appointment to the Board, each newly appointed Board
Member is given a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction programme. The programme consists of meeting
with the Chief Executive Officer (*CEO") and Management,
briefings on the Company operations and major developments,
and visits to the Company facilities. New Board Members are
able to familiarise themselves with the Company's objectives,
strategies, business, operations and internal controls, as well
as the general and specific duties of directors.

All Board Members are also given a Directors’ Handbook on
their appointment, which sets out, amongst other things,
directors’ duties, code of conduct and the Terms of Reference
of the Board Committees. The Directors’ Handbook is updated
from time to time to reflect developments in those areas.

Recognising that training and development is an ongoing
process, Board Members were invited to attend forums and
conferences on information technology in the year under
review.

Board Functions

The Board, chaired by Mr Paul Chow, directs the management
of the business and affairs of the Company. The overall
management of the Company's business is vested in the
Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-day management
of the Company's business to the Executive Committee, and
focuses its attention on providing overall strategic guidance to
the Company on its business development, finance as well as
oversight over corporate performance and governance. These
include financial statements, significant changes in accounting
policy, annual budget, certain material contracts, strategies for
future growth, major financing arrangements and major
investments, corporate governance functions, risk
management strategies and treasury policies.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The posts of Chairman and CEO are distinct and separate. The
non-executive Chairman is responsible for managing and
leading the Board in setting the Company's overall directions,
strategies and policies, as well as monitoring the performance
of the CEO. Apart from making sure that adequate information
about the Company's business is provided to the Board on a
timely basis, the Chairman provides leadership for the Board,
and ensures views on all principal and appropriate issues are
exchanged in a timely manner, by encouraging all Board
Members to make a full and effective contribution to the
discussion. Under the Chairman'’s guidance, all decisions have
reflected the consensus of the Board. The CEO is appointed by
the Board as a remunerated full-time employee of the
Company, and is responsible to the Board for managing the
business of the Company. The roles and responsibilities of the
Chairman of the Board and the CEO are separate, enhancing
independence and accountability.

Board Processes

The Board meets in person regularly, and all Board Members
have full and timely access to relevant information and may
take independent professional advice at the Company's
expense, if necessary, in accordance with the approved
procedures.

The schedule of Board and Committee meetings for the
following year is usually fixed by the Company Secretary and
agreed by the Chairman, before being communicated to other
Board Members in the third quarter of each year.

The draft agenda for regular Board meetings is prepared by the
Company Secretary and approved by the Chairman of the
Board. The agenda together with board papers are sent to all
Board Members at least five days before the intended date of
the Board meeting.

At regular Board meetings, Management reports to the Board
on business, including the Company operations, and related
business, progress of projects, financial performance, legal
issues, corporate governance, risk management, human
resources, sustainability, corporate responsibility and outlook.
Together with the discussions at Board meetings, this ensures
that Board Members have a general understanding of the
Company's business and sufficient information to make
informed decisions for the benefit of the Company.

6 2 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Meeting minutes are sent to Board Members for comment and
record within a reasonable time. Matters to be decided at
Board meetings are decided by a majority of votes from the
Board Members allowed to vote, although the usual practice is
that decisions reflect the consensus of the Board. The process
of the Board is reviewed from time to time to keep abreast of
regulatory changes and best corporate governance practices.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the
correct Board procedures are followed and advises the Board
on all corporate governance matters. All Board Members have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.
During the reporting period, the Company Secretary undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update her skills and
knowledge.

Board Meetings

During the year under review, four Board meetings were held
with an average attendance rate of 79%. Attendance records of
individual Board Members are set out on page 73.

A total of 30 Board papers and 16 sets of written resolutions
were considered or resolved.

Key matters considered/resolved:

. Cyberport Three-Year Strategic Plan 2014/15-2016/17
— Progress Update

. Annual Budget and Business Plan

. Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements

. Management accounts and reports

. Staff remuneration, pay structure and corporate
performance assessment

. Annual pay review

. Performance assessment and bonus for Management

. Corporate goals and performance measures

. Memberships of Board Committees

. Internal Control and Risk and Business Continuity
Management

. Annual Review of Corporate Governance Functions

. Transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance

Apart from Board meetings, the Chairman had sessions with
Board Members without the presence of Management to
discuss human resources matters.
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Strategic Planning

The Board has continued to review the strategies of the
Company to identify and assess the opportunities and
challenges the Company may face, and to develop a planned
course of action for the Company to generate and preserve
long-term value.

During the year, Cyberport Three-Year Strategic Plan 2014/15-
2016/17 was reviewed and modified so as to continue its public
mission to drive Hong Kong's ICT development and foster IT
legends. The Company will continue its investment plan of
HK$200 million over the three-year period to implement
strategies to create a One-Stop Platform for ICT start-ups, as
well as to engage a greater audience.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company. The financial statements are prepared on a
going concern basis and give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company, and of the Company'’s result and cash
flows for the year. In preparing the financial statements for the
year, the Board has selected appropriate accounting policies
and, apart from those new and amended accounting policies as
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, have applied
them consistently. Judgments and estimates have been made
that are prudent and reasonable.

In support of the above, the financial statements presented to
the Board have been reviewed by Management. For both the
annual report and financial statements, Management is
responsible for finalising them with the external auditor and
then the Audit Committee.

In addition, all new and amended accounting standards and
requirements, as well as changes in accounting policies
adopted by the Company have been discussed and approved
at the Audit Committee before adoption by the Company.

Board Members acknowledge their responsibilities for ensuring
that the preparation of the annual financial statements of the
Company is in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.
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Code of Conduct

The Company is fully committed to the principle of honesty,
integrity and fair play in the delivery of products and services to
the pubilic.

The Company is a public body under the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance ("POBO"). Accordingly, Board Members are
regarded as “public servants” for the purpose of POBO.

The Board is collectively responsible for the management and
operations of the Company. Board Members, both collectively
and individually, are expected to exercise fiduciary duties and
duties of skill, care and diligence to a standard at least
commensurate with the standard established by the laws and
regulations of Hong Kong.

Delegating the functions of the Board is permissible but does
not absolve Board Members from their responsibilities or from
applying the required levels if they pay attention to the
Company'’s affairs only at formal meetings. At a minimum,
Board Members must take an active interest in the Company's
affairs and obtain a general understanding of the Company’s
business.

Board Members should regularly attend and actively participate
in Board and Committee meetings, and prepare for them by
reviewing all materials provided by Management.

Board Members are required on their first appointment, on an
annual basis, and as and when necessary thereafter to declare
any interests that are or may be relevant and material to the
business and operations of the Company. They are also
required to inform the Company Secretary of any changes in
their declared interests or any new interests that may arise as
soon as they become aware of such interests. A Register of
Directors’ Interests is kept by the Company Secretary and is
accessible by the Board Members.
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Every Board Member is also required to observe his/her
ongoing disclosure obligations (including, without limitation,
requirements to notify changes in personal particulars to the
Company Secretary and/or circumstances that may affect his/
her independence, and to declare material interests, if any, in
any transaction, arrangement or contract or a proposed
transaction, arrangement or contract with the Company) under
the Companies Ordinance.

A Board Member cannot cast a vote on any contract,
transaction, arrangement or any other kind of proposal in which
he/she has an interest and which he/she knows is material
except with the approval of the Board. For this purpose,
interests of a person who is connected with a Board Member
(including any of his/her associates) are treated as the
interests of the Board Member himself/herself. A Board
Member may not be included in the quorum for such part of a
meeting that relates to a resolution he/she is not allowed to
vote on, but he/she shall be included in the quorum for all other
parts of that meeting. This reduces potential conflicts which
might otherwise arise between the Company’s business and an
individual Board Member's other interests or appointments.

6 6 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Board Committees

Under the Board, there are four standing Committees, namely
the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Entrepreneurship
Committee. Terms of Reference of the Committees set out the
function, composition of members, authority, duties, frequency
of meeting, and reporting responsibilities of the Committees.
These Committees are accountable to the Board for their
recommendations and decisions. The Terms of Reference of
Board Committees are reviewed from time to time in the light
of the Company's evolving operational, business and
development needs.

The meeting processes of Board Committees follow closely the
same of the Board. The interface between the Board and Board
Committees are:

. Agendas of Committee meetings are sent to all Board
Members

. All Board Members may attend any Committee meetings
as observers

. Board Members are free to access the papers of any
Committee meetings through the Company Secretary

. Full minutes of Committee meetings are sent to Board
Members for information

The following sets out details of Board Committees, their
memberships, principal duties and key matters considered or
resolved during the year.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee ("Excom”) is responsible for
monitoring the performance of the Company and ensuring that
the Company has been operating in consistency with the
corporate missions and the annual budget/business plan as
approved by the Board.

Membership: Six members

Chairman: Mr Paul CHOW Man-yiu

Members: Ms Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak

Ms Susie HO Shuk-yee

Mr Edwin LEE Kan-hing

Mr Alfred WONG Kwok-kuen
Mr Peter YAN King-shun

Meetings: The Excom convened 10 meetings during the

year with an average attendance rate of 85%.
A total of 43 Excom papers were considered
or resolved. Attendance records of individual
members are set out on page 73.

Principal duties:

Exercise the functions and responsibilities of the Board
between regular Board meetings

Serve as a sounding board for the Chairman of the Board
in the leadership and oversight of the business and affairs
of the Company

Help coordinate the activities among Board Committees
Review and approve the Company's policies

Oversee the Annual Budget

Review and approve the investment strategies of the
Company

Monitor the execution of the Company's strategic plans
and the operations of all business units of the Company
Plan and allocate resources, human, financial and
otherwise, for the execution and implementation of the
approved business plans and corporate development
strategies

Key matters considered/resolved:

Review of Annual Budget and Mid-Year Forecast

Monthly management accounts and report

Review and approval of Company policies

Review of investment strategies and performance of the
Company's investment portfolio

Review of strategic cooperative agreements

Approval of material tenders, programmes and contracts
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee ("AC") is responsible for overseeing and
reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control,
risk management system, regulatory compliance, and the
Company's internal audit function. It is responsible for
overseeing the integrity of the Company's financial statements
and the application of financial reporting principles, and the
Company's relationship with the external and internal auditor.

Membership: Five members

Chairperson:  Ms Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak

Members: Mr LAU Chun-kong

Mr Douglas SO Cheung-tak

Ms Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun

Mr Damian LEE Kwok-hung
(government representative)

Meetings: The AC convened three meetings during the

year with an average attendance rate of 78%.
A total of eight AC papers were considered or
resolved. Attendance records of individual
members are set out on page 73.

Principal duties:

Review financial statements

Make recommendations on the appointment of external
auditor, approve its remuneration and terms of
engagement and oversee the Company’s relations with
the external auditor

Review accounting policies

Oversee internal controls, financial controls, risk
management system and internal audit function

Report on matters in relation to corporate governance
practices

Key matters considered/resolved:

Annual Audited Financial Statements

External Auditor’'s Report, objectivity and effectiveness of
audit process

Appointment of external auditor and approval of audit fee
and non-audit services

Annual corporate governance, risk management and
internal control review

Annual internal audit programme and internal audit
reports

Adequacy of resources and effectiveness of the internal
audit function
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee (“RC") is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on organisational structure and
policies on staffing, remuneration, employment, discipline and
dismissal, with reference to the Company’s overall goals and
objectives.

Membership: Five members

Chairman: Mr Peter YAN King-shun

Members: Mr Humphrey CHOI Chor-ching

Ms Susie HO Shuk-yee
Mr Douglas SO Cheung-tak
Ms Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun

Meetings: The RC convened three meetings during the

year with an average attendance rate of 87%.
A total of six RC papers were considered or
resolved. Attendance records of individual
members are set out on page 73.

Principal duties:

Review staffing, remuneration and employment policies
and strategies

Advise the Board on staff-related issues, including annual
corporate goals and performance measures, grading and
pay structure, variable compensation and retirement
schemes

Review the criteria for assessing employee performance
and make recommendations to the Board

Review the salary increase and annual performance
bonus for the senior executives and general staff and
make recommendations to the Board

Review the performance of the CEO, COO, CFO, CTO and
the Company, with reference to the Board's approved Key
Performance Indicators ("KPIs™) and objectives

Key matters considered/resolved:

Pay and grade structure

Annual review of staff remuneration

Annual corporate performance assessment and award of
variable compensation for staff

Staff benefits and retirement benefits

Corporate goals and performance measurements
Performance review of the CEO, COO, CFO and CTO and
their variable compensation
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Entrepreneurship Committee

The Entrepreneurship Committee ("EC") is responsible for
overseeing the administration and management of any start-up
and entrepreneurship programmes and events implemented
by the Company, such as the Cyberport Incubation Programme
and the Cyberport Creative Micro Fund ("CCMF").

Membership:  Six members

Chairman: Mr Alfred WONG Kwok-kuen

Members: Professor Philip CHAN Ching-ho

Mr Edwin LEE Kan-hing

Mr Gabriel PANG Tsz-kit

Mr Peter YAN King-shun

Mr Damian LEE Kwok-hung
(government representative)

Meetings: The EC convened four meetings during the

year with an average attendance rate of 74%.
A total of 13 EC papers were considered or
resolved. Attendance records of individual
members are set out on page 73.

Principal duties:

Oversee the administration and management of the
startup and entrepreneurship programmes and events
implemented by the Company

Monitor and review the operational or financial plans and
proposals, administrative matters, business directions
and strategies in relation to the following three aspects:

—  Sparking creative ideas through the CCMF Scheme

— Nurturing tech start-ups through the Cyberport
Incubation Programme

— Boosting tech start-ups’ fundraising capability

Approve the appointment and composition of the

Entrepreneurship Centre Advisory Group ("ECAG™) which

comprises venture capitalists, business executives, ICT

industry professionals, academics, and trade association

members

Approve applications recommended by the vetting

committee for the start-up and entrepreneurship

programmes of the Company

Monitor and review the progress of the start-up

enterprises of the programmes
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Key matters considered/resolved:

Guangdong — Hong Kong ICT Young Entrepreneur
Programme

Shenzhen — Hong Kong ICT Young Entrepreneur
Programme

Amendments to Guides and Notes for the Applicants —
CCMF and Cyberport Incubation Programme

Proposal to revise the Team Composition Requirement in
the Cross-Border Programmes of CCMF Scheme
Amendments of Terms of Reference of ECAG

Cyberport University Partnership Programme

Vetting of Cyberport Incubation Programme and CCMF
applications

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2014/15
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Meeting Attendance
(1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015)

Types of meetings Board

= BEER
Board Members EEF K&

Enﬁtﬂjﬁ% ﬁi
(20144 A1

Excom AC RC

F2015%3A31RH)

EC

REBRE
BTEEE FHEEE FMZEES ZEE

Paul Chow 4/4
FE SO

Philip Chan 2/4
PR IE =
EAppointed as Directoron 5 June 2014)

R2014F6 A5 REZERES)

2/31

Rosanna Choi 4/4
BHE

8/8! 3/3 -

Humphrey Choi 374
Fip
EAppomted as Directoron 5 June 2014)
R2014F6 A5 AEZERES)

- - 3/3t

Susie Ho A/4
AR R
(including attendance by alternate)

(BREABEFEEZHERH)

10710 - 3/3

Geo%e Hongchoy 2/4

1/12 = -

Herman Hu -
A Bz B8R
ERe’ured from the Board on 4 June 2014)

M2014%6 A4 ARTES)

— 0/13 —

Edwin Lee 3/4
ZiRE

7/81 - -

4/4

Lee Shing-see -
T
ERetn’ed from the Board on 4 June 2014)

M201456 A4 ARTES)

1723 - =

Gabriel Pang 3/4
R

174

Douglas So 4/4

,.-‘?-/a.\

- 2/3 1/3

Elizabeth Tse 4/4
2 %lrél\

Eincluding attendance by alternate)

BREBEES ZHFERE)

Alfred Wong 3/4
EEE

7/10 - -

4/4

Peter Yan 3/4
ER=E

6/10 - 3/3

3/4

Jeny Yeung 2/4
CE3)

- 2/21 2/3

Notes:
1 Appointed as a member of the Committee on 26 June 2014.
2 Ceased to be a member of the Committee on 14 May 2014

3 Ceased to be a member of the Committee on 4 June 2014.

1 MR2014F6 A26 BEZTAZESHKE -

2 M201455 14 BREZEGKE °
3 R20145F6 R4BREZEGKE -
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Meeting Procedures

The Board and Committees convene meetings on a regular
basis. Special meetings will be held as and when necessary.
Management circulates papers prior to the respective meetings
to provide members adequate information in a timely manner
to facilitate their deliberation of the issues and decision-
making. The respective Board/Committee Secretaries record
the major points of discussion, recommendations, decisions
and action items arising from the meetings. Outstanding
matters are followed up by the relevant departments, and
progress updates are reported at subsequent Board/
Committee meetings.

Management and Staff

Management and staff, led by the Company’'s CEQO, are
responsible for managing the Company's day-to-day
operations and implementing the strategies and directions
determined by the Board. The performance of Management is
reviewed with reference to the KPIs and objectives approved by
the Board. The annual emoluments of the Company’s five
highest paid employees by band are disclosed under note 8 to
the financial statements on page 110.

Guidance on the ethical behaviour of the Company has been well
defined in the Company's Employee Code of Conduct and
Business Ethics (the “Code™). From time to time, the Code will
be reviewed and fine-tuned, covering such issues as prevention
of bribery, conflict of interest, acceptance of gifts and
advantages, handling of confidential information and
preservation of secrecy, intellectual property, and outside
business or employment. ICAC is invited to give briefings on
prevention of bribery and conflict of interest to the employees of
the Company on a regular basis. Staff members are also
reminded of the need for compliance with the Code from time to
time.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Company aims to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance and enhance transparency and accountability. The
external and internal audit systems are instrumental in this
mission.

External Audit

KPMG was re-appointed as the Company's external auditor to
conduct the audit of its financial statements.

The main purpose of the external audit is to provide
independent assurance to the Board and shareholders that the
annual financial statements of the Company are fairly stated.
The external auditor plays an important independent role in
expressing an opinion on the financial statements based on
their audit, and meets with the Audit Committee to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit prior to the commencement of
the work if necessary and to report on findings. The external
auditor also reports internal control recommendations identified
as part of the audit together with management responses, if
any.
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Corporate Governance Report

For the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015, there was no
non-audit service provided by KPMG.

Internal Audit

The internal audit is primarily responsible for reviewing the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control procedures and
monitoring compliance with them. The Company has
outsourced its internal audit function to an independent
professional advisory firm to monitor the Company's internal
governance and provide a basis for the Board to assess the risk
management and internal control system maintained and
operated by Management. The Audit Committee directly
oversees the work performed by the internal auditor.
Independent reviews of financial, business and functional
operations and activities have been conducted with a focus on
higher risk areas of the Company. The internal audit plan is
reviewed and agreed to by the Audit Committee in advance.
Each year, the Audit Committee reviews the results of the
internal audit and evaluates the impact of the findings and the
proposed management action plans.

Whistle-blowing Policy

The Company has a formal whistle-blowing policy in place to
encourage and guide its staff to raise serious concerns
internally in a responsible manner, without any risk of
retribution.

Transparency

The Company reports annually to the Information Technology
and Broadcasting Panel of the Legislative Council regarding the
Cyberport Project, including its financial performance.

To enhance transparency and openness, the Company
voluntarily discloses its compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The individual attendance
records of Members at the Board and Committee meetings is
also reported on page 73.

With a view to maintain open and transparent communication
with external stakeholders, the Company continues to connect
with the community by taking advantage of multiple channels
and tools. These include the official website, monthly
e-newsletter(s), press briefings and interviews, and
participation in a variety of local and overseas exhibitions and
conferences. Annual reports and information on our
programmes and offerings are disclosed on our website for
public access. The Company also make use of online media
such as Facebook, LinkedIn and Twitter for promotions and
information dissemination.

Delegation of Authority

The authority of the Board and the levels of authority delegated
to the Committees and Management is clearly defined and
documented in the Delegation of Authority Policy. Such
delegation of authority is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure
that it meets the business and operational needs.
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Practices

Although the Company is not required to comply with the CG
Code, we have applied its principles and voluntarily complied
with the code provisions therein except for those as set out

below:

A4l

Code Provisions
<F A& 3L

Non-executive directors should be appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election.

FRTEENZERAREES  WARIENME
£ o

[EXEIRHS

TERERERE
BEARREABIT(REERTA) - BHM
2T RANFETT - L EBETT
AR EARTE - A TERIN -

Reason for Deviation

1 Bt R

This provision is not applicable to the
Company. Directors are appointed generally
for a term of two years (or a term as specified
in the appointment letter). Directors are not
subject to re-election but may be re-appointed
by the shareholders.

BEMETERANRARR - EENEH—RAS
2F (HBRBZENANIEEMLH) - EFEA
WEEET BRI ABRREHRERE -

Corporate Governance Report

A6.4

Code Provisions

<FRIRX

Directors must comply with obligations under the
Model Code for Securities Transactions and the
Board should establish guidelines for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the
securities of the Company.

EEZVAETETESRR %E‘K(Tf PR E
EZRNEREREEEEARESFHERERES

EXREOHS

Reason for Deviation

i 2t JR

This provision is not applicable because all of
the Company’s shares are beneficially owned
by the HKSAR Government and are not
publicly traded.

EEBRETBERARARR - BRRARMAAERD
YHEEREBARAE YL TMERAHESR -

A4.2to
A4.3

These code provisions deal with the appointment
of directors to fill a casual vacancy, appointment
of independent non-executive directors and
retirement by rotation of directors.

BLTRIGNEBAZEETNEMBRRZR - £
BIUFAITES  ULREFNmRERE -

These provisions are not applicable to the
Company. Pursuant to the Company's Articles
of Association, directors are appointed by
shareholders.

BERETERANRARR - REARR 2R
AER) EFHBEREZRMET-

Ab.1to
A5.6

These code provisions deal with the nomination
committee.

BETRIGERERLZBE2HR -

These provisions are not applicable to the
Company since the Chairman and other
directors are appointed by the shareholders.

BURETERANRARA AEFEMEMES
HHRBRREE -
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B.1.2

The Remuneration Committee should make
recommendation to the Board on policy and
package for all remuneration of directors.

FTNEESBRMEESRKENFTMBER R FE8
MEEPRTEZ -

This provision is not applicable to the
Company because Board Members do not
receive any remuneration.

EEBRETERANRARAR  BEEFRKXEL T
WS ER A a5 A

C.3.5

This code provision deals with the reporting
requirement in the Corporate Governance Report
regarding different views between the Board and
the Audit Committee on external auditors.

SESFANESOE R EBE S RMETETE B HINEZ
FAMIFIARAERR  ECEEARBRELNREE
s o

This provision is not applicable to the
Company because there is no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee
in this respect so far.

EIEMRETNBEBRAR SEERLE
JKEQZWT“ELEE%THMﬁ

El.lto

These code provisions deal with the proceedings

E1.4 &E.2.1 for annual general meetings.

ELTRR ERREAFRENEFAR

These provisions are not applicable to the
Company as the Company is wholly owned by
the HKSAR Government via Financial
Secretary Incorporated and Resolutions in
Writing in lieu of annual general meetings is
adopted.

BERETEANALT  BAAAARHEE
BEEBE BN ER R EERARE - 2
S ARTZBRAFAEREMEMARE
FRER -
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Report of the Directors EE /%

The directors submit their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Principal activities

Details of the principal activities of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited (the “Company”) are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements.

Financial statements

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015
and the state of the Company's affairs at that date are set out

in the financial statements on pages 84 to 88.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend.

Share capital
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note

24 to the financial statements. There were no movements
during the year.

EERREZESEE2015F3A31BILEE
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Report of the Directors EE/F#H &

Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Paul CHOW Man-yiu (Chairman)

ESR (/)

Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak
HO Shuk-yee

AR R

Edwin LEE Kan-hing
AR

Gabriel PANG Tsz-kit
T

Douglas SO Cheung-tak
el

Elizabeth TSE Man-yee
FilEd=

Alfred WONG Kwok-kuen
=E

Peter YAN King-shun
ER1E

Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun
(EES

Philip CHAN Ching-ho (appointed on 5 June 2014)
PRIEZ (201456 A5 HEZT)

Humphrey CHOI Chor-ching (appointed on 5 June 2014)
215 (R2014F 6 ASREZT)

LAU Chun-kong (appointed on 5 June 2015)
IR (R 20154 6 A5 B EEE)

Herman HU Shao-ming (retired on 4 June 2014)
tARRER (R 20145 6 A4 BRE)

LEE Shing-see (retired on 4 June 2014)
FEML(R201456 A4BRE)

George HONGCHOY Kwok-lung (retired on 4 June 2015)
FEIEE (R 20156 A4 BRE)

YEUNG Tak-bun (alternate director to HO Shuk-yee, appointed on 10 July 2015)

B (AR BEEE - R20156F7 A10 BEZRE)

Joey LAM Kam-ping (alternate director to HO Shuk-yee, appointed on 16 January 2015 and resigned on 10 July 2015)
MR (RS2 HEEE - 1201541 A 16 ABEE - %51 201547 A10 A HHE)

Daniel LAl (alternate director to HO Shuk-yee, resigned on 2 January 2015)

BHE (MR BEES - N2015F1 A2 B&E)

CHAN Mable (alternate director to Elizabeth TSE Man-yee)
BREE (WS BEES)

8 O Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2014/15

RERUBERAREAFILAEEZ2EETAT :

Report of the Directors EE 5%

There being no provision in the Company's Articles of
Association for retirement by rotation, all present directors
continue in office.

Directors’ interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

At no time during the year was the Company, its fellow
subsidiaries or its immediate holding company a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company, or any of its holding company or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management contracts

Save for the management agreement of Le Méridien Cyberport,
the facilities management agreement and the system operation
contract, no other contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this Report of the
Directors, the permitted indemnity provision as defined in
section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance for the
benefit of the directors of the Company was in force. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
directors arising out of corporate activities.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By order of the board
Paul CHOW Man-yiu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 September 2015
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

B 2 EENHRE

hcbnac

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company")
set out on pages 84 to 126, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2015, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

82 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2014/15

BAZBERE
BERBBIRBEERARAGARE
(REBEBZMALZ BIRAA])

Az EEN (A TR [RFI]) EJEEA IR E
BAZI6EEFBHBEEEAR AR (AT
BIERRDOFHHRE WP BRREBER
20154 3 A1 BMMBINRNE « BEZH LF
Erezmiias REgBRMRERERIA
REBEFTHRME M EMK EREER -

ESRVBHRRARENSE

BERAMERARERBEESIMASRM
HICE B B 5 s Q) R BB A RGP #m
MBRE - AU BBREHEEMATHR
MR K & B H 3RS i BB 15 SRR P 0 B A B 42
B - B B mER N FEBERRFRERME
BB KRR -

BB AN EE

BPNEERRERMNFTHZFHHRE
EHER - RPIREBREA(R ARG % 405
REVIRTE - EREEBRREBE - Rtk z5h - &,
PR E Al MIEE M A o BAIBI TR AR
TOAE > HEFAEMATATENAEEIREER
£ o

HPMERBEEESHAMASEMN(EERZ
HRH)ETEN - ZFERBEREMIETER
ME - WS MATTER - LA IR TE MR
REBNFAEEAERERERL -

Independent Auditor’s Report

B 2 AR E

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2015
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince's Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

30 September 2015
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
FHRER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z 20153 A31 HILFE

2015 2014
HK$ HK$
BT P TT
(restated)
(QEIE)))
(g&&:7)
(MzE2(a))
Revenue WA 5 437,752,796 425,077,199
Other income HaA 5 30,910,149 24,639,392
R, 468,662,945 449,716,591
Expenses before public mission KA DAREHEBDIHR
activities expenses and TEZXH
depreciation
Building management expenses YIEEES N (135,024,276) (125,473,532)
Staff costs B T A 6 (85,260,987) (83,175,379)
Government rent and rates #h 78 K2 2= £ 9 (12,895,369) (13,693,590)
Other operating expenses Hth & E 2 (76,420,705) (78,089,297)
Finance costs %5 E R 11 (28,190) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (309,629,527) (300.431,798)
Operating profit before public R DABREW TR HR
mission activities expenses TEZEE R
and depreciation 159,033,418 145,284,793
Public mission activities expenses ~ AR{Eap A B H 10 (68,239,669) (52,674,193)
Operating profit before RETITEZEEGF
depreciation 90,793,749 96,610,600
Depreciation e 13 (148,376,683) (178,435,825)
Loss before taxation BB A A 11 (57,582,934) (81,825,225)
Income tax expense FTiSBisZ i 12 - -
Loss and total comprehensive FRABBERZERZEHE

income for the year

(57,582,934)

(81,825,225)

The notes on pages 89 to 126 form part of these financial

statements.

84 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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5 89 £ 126 A Z M AARMIEME 2 AR

Statement of Financial Position
B RS AR R 3=

As at 31 March 2015 7201543 A 31 H

Non-current assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment M3 - R RHRE 13 3,086,109,792 3,176,167,571

Deferred rental receivables RICEWHE S 12,992,113 12,718,015

Investments in securities BHEE 14 655,001,734 483,081,962
30754108639 367196/.548
Current assets RBEE

Inventories, at cost BFEKA 483,024 509,988

Trade and other receivables JFE M5 B R % L b Uk TR 15 17,934,921 27,632,121

Amounts due from fellow FEUR B R BT B A B FUE

subsidiaries 16 1,824,347 1,901,850

Investments in securities BHIRE 14 365,532,175 491,013,163

Cash and bank balances BeRIRTET 17 102,295,260 100,188,848
488,069,727 621245970
Current liabilities pih=EE

Trade and other payables FEAS BR SR B Bt e < 5RIA 18 77,405,078 83,771,333

Rental and other deposits MPEEe R EMRE 19 74,577,479 70,270,575

Amount due to the immediate FEST B BT A B ZUE

holding company 16 254,227,227 254,231,148

Obligations under a finance lease BMEREHAE 20 2,077,328 =
408,287,112 408,273,056
Netcurrentassets ~ #“BKE¥E® 0000000000 79,782,615 212,972,914
Total assets less current liabilities ~ REZRABAHF 3833886254 3884940462
Non-current liabilities ¥ REBEE

Development maintenance fund BRECES 21 422,908,030 432,698,309

Facilities maintenance fund REMEEES 22 39,608,774 50,000,000

Deferred income EIEY a5 23 651,721 59,560

Obligations under a finance lease BMEREAE 20 5,759,155 -
468,927,680 482,757,869
NET ASSETS EEFE 3,364,958,574 3,402,182,593
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARK HE

Share capital AR 24 2 2

Capital reserve N 5,302,729,607 5,282,370,692

Accumulated losses 25FTEE (1,937,771,035) (1,880,188,101)
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 3,364,958,574 3,402,182,593

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

30 September 2015.

Paul CHOW Man-yiu

R
Director

EE

The notes on pages 89 to 126 form part of these financial

statements.

Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak
eoRfE

Director

EE

ERAYEEEEERAT
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Statement of Cash Flows
HERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z 20154 3 A31HILFE

Statement of Changes in Equity
R ER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z 20153 A31 HILFE

Share Capital Accumulated
capital reserve losses

A EXfE R ER
HK$ HK$

o o o Cash flows from operating activities K& FBH HERE
AT BT AT

Balance at 1 Aoril 201 — Ly y—— NetezorpeneEcdiomeperiions  (eee s iEsesBen ] 29 WERNKESAN (417200
alanceatLApril2013 R201354 A1 e (LdSlerslozsilg) St Cash flows from investing activities REZEZEEHRE
N _ , Purchase of property, plant BAYE - #BE K&
Changes in equity for the year: FREZED and equipment (28,847,901) (50,788,782)
-to- | B : =5 H 1>
Transfer from deVe'Opment Hﬂ%@%&ﬂ%%@@%@ PL::;CVhaSiSnO];TSeld e maturlty Hﬁk?ﬁfﬁiij/ﬁ ElTXﬁ (238 994 996) (447 679 502)
maintenance fund to BARGHE (7 21) eotme . B

: ; B A db /N A (B A B34
capital reserve (note 21) B 5,406,640 B 5,406,640 Purchase of investments at fair value ~ BAR AR BEF AEZ

Capital reserve arising on handover
of property, plant and equipment

RBRME - HaE MR
MmEL 2 BARE

2,220,611

= 2,220,611

through profit or loss

Redemption of held-to-maturity

ZRE
BOFAEEIHAKE

(48,854,765) (304,083,397)

Loss and total comprehensive EREHENEANE nvestments ~ PR an o amen 202,000,000 SESCISES:cC00
income for the year e . (81825.225)  (81.825.225) Proceeds from sale of investments & TK\L\/LEZEE-I')\TE@
at fair value through profit or loss ZIERBRIA 35,542,311 20,544,654
Balancg at 31 March 2014 and R2014F3A31BR Decrease in bank deposits with FEEBEB=@AZ
1 April 2014 2014 4 B 1B &% 5,282,370,692 (1,880,188,101) 3,402,182,593 longer than three months maturity BITESRD - 324.794,585
o Interest income received from: BEUF B
Changes in equity for the year: FREZRE — held-to-maturity investments —REZIBHARE 20,885,930 14,309,811
\ — investments at fair value through —RAANBEFAEBRIRE
Transfer from development ﬁ%@%&ﬂ%géﬁﬁﬁ profit or loss 7,821,990 2,366,718
maintenance fund to EARGE (M 21) Interest income on bank BRI T BB
capital reserve(_npte 21). s - 9,790,279 - 9,790,279 deposits received 220,720 4,667,518
O L L e L 039109 091206 Net cashused ininvesting activities BMEB2REMMFM  (50.226.711) (255485195)
Capital reserve arisngon handover ~ EBSHTE - BE R Cash flows from financing activities ¥ EFB2BREHRE
of property, plant and equipment mEE 2 EARSE - 177,410 - 177,410 (Decrease)/increase inamount due to  FERF B AR A BIFIE
Loss and total comprehensive FREBR2AEKS the immediate holding company CR) /s _ (3:921) 20,319
income for the year Pt _ - (57,582,934) (57,582,934) Government grants and sponsorship B W FT#BI& & & B /F5E
received 23 882,000 220,423
Balance at 31 March 2015 R2015%3 A 31 Bt 2 5302,729,607 (1,937,771,035) 3,364,958,574 Crlielelement eiiranaslease BN BT SRS EA DA
rentals paid (1,552,120) =
The notes on pages 89 to 126 form part of these financial $89FE 1268 z Hist B #HE < ARK D - Interest element of finance lease EN@MEREHESF S
statements. rentals paid (28,190) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from BI#FEB 2R (RE),/RA
financing activities FE (702,231) 240,742

The notes on pages 89 to 126 form part of these financial Z89F126B 2 Wit ARMISHR ZEK D -
statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
HWERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z 20153 A31 HILFE

Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRHASEHEER

and cash equivalents #hn CRd) B 2,106,412 (180,626,492)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUzHReREELEHEER

beginning of the year 100,188,848 280,815,340
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZESRESEEER

end of the year 17 102,295,260 100,188,848
Significant non-cash transaction EXFRERS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, additions to certain  #ZE 20153 A31 BILEER KA T AFHET
property, plant and equipment of the Company financed by a g1 & &K B A& 19,388,603 7T (2014 4 :
new finance lease were HK$9,388,603 (2014: Nil). ) 7T - HEs & o

The notes on pages 89 to 126 form part of these financial ZE89FE126H v M tE AR IEHE 2 AKX D o
statements.
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General information

The principal activity of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited (the “Company”) is to
support and promote innovation and technology
development in Hong Kong through the creation of a
strategic cluster of information and communications
technology (“ICT") based companies as well as
encouraging the building of a critical mass of professional
talent in the territory.

With a vision to establish itself as a leading ICT hub in the
Asia-Pacific region, the public missions of the Company
are (a) to create a strategic cluster of quality ICT and ICT-
related companies; (b) to nurture and support the
development of small and medium ICT enterprises as an
essential constituent of such a strategic cluster; (¢) to
provide a state-of-the-art infrastructure conducive to the
creation of such a strategic cluster and its development;
and (d) to develop a regional centre of excellence in ICT
for creating human capital through collaboration and
partnership with the industry, academia, and research
institutes and professional bodies. To implement various
programmes to achieve its missions (“Public mission
activities”), the Company has established four
interdependent centres, namely, “Technology Centre”,
“Entrepreneurship Centre”, “Collaboration Centre” and
“Knowledge Centre” (together referred to as “Operating
Centres”). The expenses incurred by the Operating
Centres for Public mission activities are disclosed in note
10.

Campus Development Centre was established to oversee
the management and maintenance of the Cyberport
Campus, providing state-of-the-art facilities and a creative
atmosphere for ICT companies to thrive and grow.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is Units
1102-1104, Level 11, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong.

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region ("HKSAR") via
Financial Secretary Incorporated.

These financial statements have been approved for issue
by the board of directors on 30 September 2015.

Notes to the Financial Statements B #8 R M5
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ## R &

(a)

Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs™), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except where stated
otherwise in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in note 4.

In order to better reflect the vision and focus of the public
mission activities of the Company and allow a more
comprehensive and informative presentation of the
Company's results to the financial statement users,
management of the Company has reconsidered the
presentation in the statement of comprehensive income.
Certain expenses, less recovery of direct expenses, in
connection with the public mission activities have been
reclassified as “Public mission activities expenses” and
disclosed as a separate line item on the face of the
statement of comprehensive income. Accordingly, the
relevant comparative amounts of staff costs, information
technology facilities maintenance fees, government rent
and rates and other operating expenses, totalling
HK$61,225,589 and the recovery of direct expenses,
totalling HK$8,551,396 have been reclassified to conform
with the current year's presentation.
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(b)
0)

(i)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Adoption of amendments and new standards

New and revised standards and amendments effective
for the year ended 31 March 2015

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Company. The adoption
of these amendments to HKFRSs has no material effect
on the Company's results and financial position for the
current or prior periods.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and
Audit”, of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) came into operation at the start of the Company's
current financial year. The adoption of the requirements
has primarily impacted the presentation and disclosure of
information in the financial statements. These changes
mainly include updating any references to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance to refer to the current Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and replacing certain terminology
no longer used in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
with terminology used in HKFRSs.

Standards and amendments to existing standards that
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2015 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements.

The Company is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new standards and amendments to
standards and is not yet in a position to state whether
they would have a significant impact on the Company's
results and financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ## R &

(c)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives. The principal annual rates in use are as follows:

Buildings
BF

Building services and support facilities

BT IR E SRR

Information technology facilities
BB R

Centres equipment

PR

Leasehold improvements

HEYHRIRE

Furniture and equipment

BRI N2 3

Motor vehicles

B

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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(c)

(d)

()

(i)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note

2(f).

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Company
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a
specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Company

Assets that are held by the Company under leases which
transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Company are
classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Company acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value of
the leased asset, or, if lower, the present values of the
minimum lease payments, are included in property, plant
and equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost or valuation of the assets over the term
of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Company will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 2(c). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
2(f). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ## R &

(d)
(iif)

(e)

()

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leased assets (continued)
Operating lease charges

Where the Company has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal installments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Investments in securities

The Company classifies its investments in securities in the
following categories: held-to-maturity and at fair value
through profit or loss. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the securities were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
investments in securities at initial recognition.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Company’'s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. They are
included in non-current assets, except for those with
maturities less than 12 months from the end of the
reporting period, which are classified as current assets.

Held-to-maturity investments are stated in the statement
of financial position at cost plus/less any discount/
premium amortised to date. The discount or premium is
amortised over the period to maturity and included as
interest income/expense in the statement of
comprehensive income. Provision is made when there is a
diminution in value other than temporary.

The carrying amounts of individual held-to-maturity
investments or holdings of the same investments are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period in order to
assess the credit risk and whether the carrying amounts
are expected to be recovered. Provisions are made when
carrying amounts are not expected to be recovered and
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
as expense immediately.
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(e)
(i)

(f)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in securities (continued)
Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in securities managed by external fund
managers are designated at fair value as they are
managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value
basis.

Investments in securities at fair value through profit or
loss are initially stated at fair value, which is their
transaction price unless it is determined that the fair value
at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and
that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or based on a
valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as
incurred. At the end of the reporting period the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
The net gain or loss recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income does not include any interest
earned on these investments as these are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out in note 2(0)(vii).

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for indications of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset,
or of the cash generating unit to which it belongs, is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
assets. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.
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(f)

€y

(h)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
depreciation/amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Government grants or sponsorship

A government grant or sponsorship is recognised at fair
value when there is reasonable assurance that the
Company will comply with the conditions attaching with it
and that the grant will be received.

Government grants and sponsorships relating to income
are deferred and recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income over the period necessary to
match them with the costs they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants and sponsorships relating to the
purchase of property, plant and equipment are credited
to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related
assets.

Inventories

Inventories, comprising food, beverage and operating
supplies, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs are calculated using the weighted average
costing method. Net realisable value is determined on the
basis of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling
expenses.
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(0

(k)

(1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, and highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Employee benefits

()

(i)

(iif)

(n)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Retirement scheme obligations

The Company operates a defined contribution retirement
scheme, the Mandatory Provident Fund, and pays
contributions to a publicly administered retirement
benefit plan on a mandatory basis. The Company has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as
a liability when the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled
within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the country where the
Company operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements.
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()

(0)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue and other income comprise the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
services in the ordinary course of the Company's
activities. Revenue and other income are recognised as
follows:

(i) Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the lease. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

(i) Management fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

(i) Income from hotel operation is recognised upon
provision of services.

(iv) Car park fee and information technology facilities
income are recognised when the services are
rendered and the facilities are utilised.

(v) Income from leasing of centre facilities is recognised
when the facilities are utilised.

(vi) Other incidental income and services income are
recognised when the Company is entitled to the
income and the services are rendered.

(vil) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis, using the effective interest method.
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(p)
0]

(i)

(a)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company
are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (the
“functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Company. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, the matter will then be recognised as a
provision.
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(a)

(i)

Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities are exposed to a variety of
financial risks: interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Company’'s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
of these risks on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Company's
management under policies approved by the Board. The
Company's management identifies, evaluates and
manages significant financial risks in the Company's
business units. The Board provides guidance for overall
risk management.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest
rates will impact the earnings of the Company. The
Company's major interest-bearing assets comprise bank
deposits and held-to-maturity investments (collectively
“interest bearing assets™) and are primarily issued at fixed
rates which therefore do not expose the Company to cash
flow interest rate risk.

The Company has no significant borrowings other than
the non interest-bearing advance from the immediate
holding company.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential failure of the
Company's counterparties to meet their obligations under
financial contracts. The Company is exposed to credit risk
on cash and bank balances, investments in securities, as
well as trade and other receivables.

The Company’s bank deposits are deposited with banks
of high credit quality in Hong Kong to minimise the credit
exposure.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #8 R M5

3 Financial risk management and fair valuesof 3 BEEREEREMIEZAR 3 Financial risk management and fair values of HMBEREEREMIAZAR
financial instruments (continued) BE{E @ financial instruments (continued) E{E @)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) MBERBER (@) (a) Financial risk factors (continued) MR EE (E)
(i) Credit risk (continued) (i) EERB(E (iii) - Liquidity risk (continued) REBE SRR ()
For investments in securities, the Company adopts a MEHFEE  ARRRATEZEEK - R The table below analyses the Company's financial TRAERRAZUBABERREHRES
prudent policy to invest in securities only with very strong BRENRBEBAIER 2 REREETRUR liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the AR EI R 2 A B 2 BB B B4R Rl
investment-grade credit ratings and limit exposure to any PREIZEREME—2FSH - RAAIKEF remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the e BERABRBZ SR R/BORTE R
single investment. The exposures to these credit risks are BERELEERR - contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the EmE e
monitored on an ongoing basis. table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
For rent receivable from tenants, credit checks are part of REKEFHEESME ERLHERERSE Less than Between More than
the normal leasing process and stringent monitoring EEEESWHIBEARER 2 EHEEIE lyear 1and 2 years 2 years
procedures are in place to deal with overdue debts. In RREEIRRT o AN AR EIBER S |ME HP —ETF —ZEWE MELLE
addition, the Company reviews the recoverable amount of RE R & RETE 2 TR B S8 - LAREIREE HKS HKS HKS
each individual balance outstanding at the end of the EORIRE 2 R R SR E R IR A o ST e ST
reporting period to ensure that adequate provision for RATRASEARAAEPKRES - I : : :
impairment losses is made for irrecoverable amounts. REBEBERABREF R EER M AHRME At 31 March 2015 201543 A31H
The Company normally receives rents in advance from PREHIRITER - » F3R
tenabntts on atmlznthly ltt:>a5|sbandka|so haf pol:cmes |tn placte Trade and other payables EBESR RHMbERNZE 77,405,078 — —
00 ta'” rental deposi StOL anx guarantees from tenants Rental and other deposits MPZeREMmES 28,167,432 25,920,186 20,489,861
iAo Gttt s A ORIEES S Amount due to the immediate FEfRT B EER AT
A , » I holding company KIE 254,277,277 - -
For other trade receivables, the exposure to these credit HEMBEREER  AARFEERELE Fi | liabiliti = R T A 4
. o t S HEBE 2,107,080 2,107,080 3,687,390
risks is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations ERE - HAAEERKEBE—FEEEREZE nance ease TabItes SO
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a FEITEEMN - tkERKERR ZEEH At 31 March 2014 MA201443HA31H
certain amount. These receivables are due ranging from BEANBEERTHEZZ30E60K > —
30 to 60 days from the date of billing. Normally, the BIEAT - AABTEMEFKEERY) Trade and other payables JEBRR R H A RIE 83,771,333 - -
Company does not obtain collateral from customers. Rental and other deposits MPiEe RHEMES 29,879,595 19,902,620 20,488,360
Amount due to the BN BEZEERAR
The Company has no significant concentrations of credit ARG EEREEEPEAR - immediate holding B
risk. company 254,231,148 - -
(iii) Liquidity risk (i) REESEK

10

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is unable to
meet its current obligations when they fall due. Prudent
liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of funding through operating
cash flows and advance from the immediate holding
company.

The Company's policy is to regularly monitor its current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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(b)
0

(i)

Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

Fair values measurement
Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The Company's investments in securities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured using market quoted
prices and therefore fall within the Level 1 fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13.

Fair value hierarchy

The level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Company's policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
2014 and 2015 except for the held-to-maturity
investments, for which their fair values at 31 March 2015
totalled HK$721,203,304 (2014: HK$686,589,311),
compared to their carrying amount of HK$718,192,926
(2014: HK$687,057,369). The fair values are measured
using market quoted prices and therefore fall within the
Level 1fair value hierarchy.
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(c)

Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The
Company's strategy remains unchanged for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

Management reviews the capital structure periodically
and manages its overall capital structure if necessary. As
at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Company was in a net
cash position.

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are
discussed below:
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(a)

(b)

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company performs review for impairment of non-
financial assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets may not be recoverable.

The Company reviews certain indicators of potential
impairment of these assets such as reported sales and
purchase prices, market demand and general market
conditions. The Company considers “Buildings held for
rental”, “"Hotel building” and “Building services and
support facilities” as a portfolio of assets and identifies
the cash-generating unit to which the portfolio of assets
belongs by referring to the valuation performed by
independent external valuers, after taking into
consideration the net income allowing for reversionary
potential. The assumptions adopted in the property
valuation are based on the market conditions existing at
the end of the reporting period, with reference to current
market sales prices and the appropriate capitalisation
rate.

Based on the Company's best estimates, no provision for
impairment loss on the non-financial assets is necessary.

Investments in securities

The Company follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on initial
classification of non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-
maturity if the Company has the intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity; or at fair value through
profit or loss if the investments are managed by external
fund manager and their performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, and information about the investments is
provided internally on that basis to the Company's key
management.

For held-to-maturity investments, the Company evaluates
its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If the Company fails to keep these investments
to maturity other than for specific circumstances — for
example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity
— it will be required to reclassify the entire class as
available-for-sale. The investments would, therefore, be
measured at fair value not at amortised cost.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

Investments in securities (continued)

For investments designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, the Company engages an external fund manager
to manage the investment portfolio which is evaluated
and reported internally on a fair value basis. Accordingly,
these investments are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss and are stated at fair value with subsequent
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Management determines the provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables based on the credit history or
the financial position of its customers and the current
market conditions. Management will assess the adequacy
of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
at the end of each reporting period and significant level of
judgement is required in determining the adequacy of
such provision.

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.

The Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the year in which such determination is
made.

Recognition of deferred tax asset, which principally relates
to tax losses of the Company, depends on the
management's expectation of future taxable profits that
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.
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5 Revenue and other income 5 WAREEMUEKA
Revenue and other income recognised during the year are FE AU A BEE A I AFERAT
as follows:
2014
HK$
BIT
(restated)
(&&E5))
Revenue KA
Rental income HE WA 196,404,413 188,294,356
Building management income MEERIA
— Management fee income —BEEBRA 82,541,738 | | 80,082,406
— Car park fee income 21N 10,646,259 9,016,322
— Other facilities income — HM RS 21,141,387 20,905,537
114,329,384 110,004,265
Income from hotel operation NP AL PN 126,468,735 124,446,836
Information technology facilities income & &R EHR R HEURA 481,439 481,439
Other incidental income HEaEWA 68,825 1,850,303
437,752,796 425077,199
Other income Hibr A
Interest income from held-to-maturity B ZF|HABKEEE F YA -
investments, net of amortisation of kR m B i FE
premium of HK$5,936,683 5,936,683 7T
(2014: HK$7,346,030) (2014 % : 7,346,030/ 7T) 16,271,226 9 656,393
Interestincome from investments at AR BEFABZEZ
fair value through profit or loss & BUTA 8,111,601 4.367,602
Interest income on bank deposits RITHE A EUWA 217,217 2,252,254
Services income from fellow B ZME A TR A

subsidiaries (Note) (FF5E) 4,201,654 4,201,654
Net realised/unrealised gains on BARBESABRZ

investments at fair value through BEZBEE REH

profit or loss W RE 2,108,451 4.161,489

30,910,149 24,639,392

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2014/15
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5 Revenue and other income (continued) 5

Note: Pursuant to the services agreement dated 25 October 2003
entered into between the Company and Hong Kong Cyberport
(Ancillary Development) Limited ("HKCAD"), its fellow subsidiary,
a fixed monthly services income of HK$125,600 was received from
HKCAD commencing from November 2003 for the provision of
services by the Company to facilitate the operation of the private
residential buildings (the “Residential Portion™) of the Cyberport.
The fee was revised to HK$200,000 commencing from April 2006
and to HK$261,000 commencing from May 2008. Total amount
received during the year was HK$3,132,000 (2014:
HK$3,132,000).

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12 March 2005 entered
into between the Company and Skillful Limited, its fellow
subsidiary, a monthly services income was received for the
provision of information technology and telecommunications
services to the Residential Portion of the Cyberport. Total amount
received during the year was HK$1,069,654 (2014:
HK$1,069,654).

6 Staff costs 6

W A EEE AU A ()

Mi3E : 452003410 A 25 H AR 7] B H [ Z K B
AEEABBEE(NBERER) ER A A
(THKCAD)) 5T 2 IR % e+ AR RIS
BRAEEZFIM (A TEE [EEHH5 )
Z&EMmEERY - B2003F 11 ARKE A
MHKCAD U EX 125,600 7T 2 [ TE ARFE WA ©
R 20064 4 AFM2008 45 A#e  tLBWE S
RERT A5 A 200,000 7551 261,000 7T °
ANEE B Uk 4258 53,132,000 7T (2014 4F -
3,132,000/ 7T) °

BIE2005F3 A 12 BARRIEERRZWE R
A] Skillful Limited 2 5] 2 Bk 7% 17335 + A2 Al5L
ISR EEDHIREEMBEEEARSES A
B RIS o AR 4F B U4 5E 51,069,654
T (20144 : 1,069,654 7T) °

BITRA

2014
HK$

BT
(restated)
(&E5)

Salaries and allowances Fr ELEAL 89,840,342 87,484,766
Unutilised annual leave AZHRFR 2,080,880 2,046,628
Contributions to Mandatory SEHIEANTER
Provident Fund HEK 4,157,059 3,711,390
Staff benefits and other staff costs BTEM&EME TR 979,913 551,004
97,058,194 93,793,788
Analysed into: DR
Hotel JBIE 52,109,012 51,153,418
Corporate office RNAEIHER 33,151,975 32,021,961
85,260,987 83,175,379
Operating Centres (note 10) B (FIEE 10) 11,797,207 10,618,409
97,058,194 93,793,788
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Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements B ## R &

EEME

RIFEE DR BERDIFE 3831 K A 7 (KR
E=ZNGZER) ROE2HRBEZEEH
T

Directors' fees EEHe

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

Discretionary bonuses Y IBTEAT

Retirement scheme contributions IRIRET IR

e RMREDER

Five highest paid individuals

The emoluments payable to the five individuals whose
emoluments were the highest in the Company during the
year are as follows:

AUHMES 2 AL

REFNAATAEHMES 2 A LS
m -

Salaries and allowances e BERL 11,353,334 11,321,240
Contributions to Mandatory BHIMEAES
Provident Fund R 175,000 150,000
11,528,334 11,471,240
The emoluments fell within the following bands: ERAF M SEEWT -

2015 2014

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

1,000,001 7L %E 1,500,000 % 7T
1,500,001 7L %E 2,000,000 # 7T
2,000,001 &% 2,500,000% 7T
2,500,001 %7 E 3,000,000% 7T
3,000,001 %7 % 3,500,000% T

Ol|l= k= | W
Ol|l— B~ | W |
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10

Government rent and rates

9

72 &% =

Hotel BIE 1,398,600 1,443,600
Other Cyberport Portion B E A E D 11,496,769 12,249,990
12,895,369 13,693,590
Operating Centres (note 10) 8O (FFEE 10) 414,750 449,040
13,310,119 14,142,630
Public mission activities expenses 10 ARFEWEESZH

Public mission activities expenses represent the expenses
incurred by the Operating Centres for Public mission
activities as described in note 1. Such expenses is arrived
at after charging primarily staff costs of HK$11,797,207
(2014: HK$10,618,409), information technology facilities
maintenance fees of HK$22,586,236 (2014:
HK$18,398,690), financial assistance to industry start-
ups of HK$13,654,021 (2014: HK$11,767,715),
programme expenses (seminars, trainings, competitions,
workshops and exhibitions) of HK$21,068,502 (2014:
HK$13,625,404), government rent and rates of
HK$414,750 (2014: HK$449,040), and crediting the
recovery of direct expenses of HK$9,344,038 (2014
HK$8,551,398).

NRE B S R EE LA 2 8 L
RETAREEBIARZZ I - %%
X H B Mk 8 IR AR11,797,207% T
(2014 % : 10,618,409% L) - BBt &
RIEREE R 22,586,236 7T (2014 4 :
18,398,690/8 L) ~ AAIBFIEMHERS
13,654,021% JT(2014 4 : 11,767,715%
T BIEXH (e -\l 'S T
1Ed R & B ) 21,068,502 % 7T (2014 4F :
13,625,404 7% 7T ) ~ #1718 K& Z 414,750
7 (2014 5F : 449,040 7T ) » W&t A
W\ 2 B2 19,344,038 7T (20144 -
8,551,398 7T) °
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11

12
(a)

(b)

11 BRBiIRIER
BB AIAAE st ARG THIER -

Loss before taxation

Loss before taxation is stated after crediting and charging
the following:

Crediting: 2FAEA :

Rental income less outgoings of AL WA
HK$11,496,769 (2014 11,496,769% 7T
HK$12,249,990) (20144 : 12,249,990/87t) 184,907,644 176,044,366

Reversal of provision for impairment  FEURBR FURE B &

of receivables [o] 2% 562,464 1,867,683
Charging: 2HRER :
Cost of inventories FEKA 15,315,919 15,282,094
Auditor's remuneration ZEET & 418,000 405,000
Provision for impairment of receivables J&U& B Z R 1B B 5 682,916 991,006
Loss on disposals of property, plant ~ HE¥E - #ERREZ

and equipment, net B 77,441 265,485
Finance cost: WBER :

Finance charges on obligations BEMEREZMBX L

under a finance lease 28,190 =

Income tax expense 12 FiB8®HixH
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the (a) AR RIANEE EEEAIERBHN - Bt
Company has no assessable profits for the year (2014: I 45 5L B B F 15 5 E o B B (2014 4F -
Nil). ) o

The tax on the Company's loss before taxation differs  (b) ZARARKRIATEE 2 HIBRKBESED
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax MEAE 7IEmHzE s =280 -
rate of Hong Kong as follows:

Loss before taxation B AT ES 1R

(567,582,934) (81,825,225)

BBE16.5% (2014 4 :

16.5%) T E 2 B8 (9,501,184) (13,501,162)
BART A (36,000) (702,475)
RNEER Z TR 18 9,537,184 14,203,637

Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5%
(2014:16.5%)

Income not subject to tax

Tax losses not recognised
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12

(c) Deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities

(d)

12 P88 @)
(c) BRRZELFEH(EE) AE

Income tax expense (continued)

recognised

The movements of deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities BEFTSH(EE) BERFRZESHN
during the year are as follows: T

Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
related
depreciation

BHE#H
Tax losses HEZITE Others
BIEEE RBE Hith
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT 7STT 7STC

Deferred income tax arising EEFTEBRE :
from:

At 1 April 2013 M2013F4A1H
(Credited)/charged to profit ~ REEA (FFA) /K%
or loss (10,820,225) 10,540,957 279,268 -

At 31 March 2014 R2014%3A31H (50,662,545) 51,466,077  (803,532) =

At 1 April 2014 MN2014%481H (50,662,545) 51,466,077 (803,532) =
(Credited)/charged to profit ~ RMEER (GHA), /%
orloss (13,340,843) 12,771,883 568,960 -

At 31 March 2015 M2015F3A431H (64,003,388) 64,237,960  (234,572) =

(39.842,320) 40,925,120 (1,082,800) =

“=4

Deferred income tax assets are not recognised for (d) EREEMETE S B BARRERD A &
remaining temporary differences arising from tax losses BB - AR ERIBEET
carried forward due to uncertainty of realisation of the EECHHBREREERRELEMEHE
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits. As at E- B ZE2015F3H318  X_RI%EA
31 March 2015, the Company has unrecognised tax losses RFHER 2 HIEEEI73EE L (2014
of HK$1,973 million (2014: HK$1,920 million). The tax & 19.201887T) - HIEE B MR HT -
losses have no expiry date and are yet to be agreed by the BAGHEBER -

Inland Revenue Department.
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13 Property, plant and equipment

13 ¥% - BBERRHE

Notes to the Financial Statements B ## R &

Building
Buildings services and Information Centres Furniture
held for Hotel support technology equipment Leasehold and Motor
rental building facilities facilities (Note (jii)) improvements equipment vehicles
BAEELE |: £33 B R BEN
2 =2 i &2 XERIE R (GE)] BRI BRERE L]
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Cost R&
At 1 April 2014 RW2014€4A18  3,557,123776 274937912 1149587455 235210482 60,886,254 49,618,349 129,737,277 1,018,019 5,458,119,524
Additions AR - - 10,391,226 401,676 - 25867459 21,735,984 - 58,396,345
Disposals e - - - (55,704) - - (1,363,507) - (1,419,211)
At31March 2015 W2015%3A318 3,557,123,776 274937912 1159978681 235556454 60,886,254 75,485,808 150,109,754 1,018,019 5,515,096,658
Accumulated RitHiE
depreciation
At1Apri2014 "2014%4A1H 769,422,494 59,553,340 1,114,916,005 216515901 60,833,430 13,958,849 45928455 823479 2,281,951,953
Charge for the year FANE 77,142,966 5955334 35,053,671 5,101,660 52,824 5,736,927 19,211,300 122,001 148,376,683
Written back on disposals AHERR - - - (55,704) - - (1,286,066) - (1,341,770)
At31March 2015 M201543A31H 846565460 65508674 1149969676 221,561,857 60,886,254 19,695,776 63,853,689 945,480 2,428,986,866
Net book value REEE
At 31 March 2015 ®201543A318 2710558316 209,429,238 10,009,005 13,994,597 - 55790,032 86,256,065 72,539 3,086,109,792

rental

Building

facilities

Furniture

LR R Lk

18T B (B Gif))

HK$ HKS$

BT BT
Cost R&
At 1 April 2013 W2013F4A18  3557,123776 274937912 1149720664 238496582 60,886,254 30,689,238 90,466,528 1,018,019 5,403,338,973
Additions AE = = = 6,450,638 = 18,939,111 41,484,104 = 66,873,853
Disposals HE = = (133209)  (9.736,738) = (10,000)  (2,213,355) - (12,093,302)
At 31 March 2014 MW2014€3A318 3557123776 274937912 1149587455 235,210,482 60,886,254 49618349 129,737,277 1,018,019 5458119524
Accumulated depreciation Rt E
At 1 April 2013 ®2013F4A1A 692,279,529 53,598,006 1041859933 221,470,402 60,463,397 10,469,670 34,501,530 701,478 2,115,343,945
Charge for the year FRHE 77,142,965 5,955,334 73,181,510 4782237 370,033 3499179 13,382,566 122,001 178,435,825
Written back on disposals R ERRE = = (125438)  (9.736,738) = (10,000)  (1,955,641) - (11,827,817)
At 31 March 2014 W2014F3A318 769422494 59553340 1,114916,005 216,515,901 60,833,430 13,958,849 45,928,455 823479 2281951953
Net book value REEE
At31March 2014 W2014F3A318  2787,701,282 215384572 34,671,450 18,694,581 52,824 35,659,500 83,808,822 194540 3,176,167,571
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13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Notes:

)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

On 22 May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted the
Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate
holding company for a term of 50 years at a lump sum initial
premium of HK$1,000.

On 24 May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease
agreement (“Sub-lease Agreement”) with the immediate holding
company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at
Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam (“Cyberport Portion") is sub-leased to
the Company from the immediate holding company at nil rental.

The buildings are situated in Hong Kong and held on a sub-lease
from the immediate holding company for a term of 50 years less
the last 3 days thereof commencing from 22 May 2000.

Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship
Centre and Technology Centre funded by government grant and
used for the purpose of the designated projects.

As at 31 March 2015, the fair value of the buildings held for rental
(together with the associated building services and support
facilities) amounted to HK$6,356 million (2014: HK$6,180 million).
The aggregate carrying value of such assets amounted to
HK$2,721 million (2014: HK$2,823 million). The fair value of the
buildings held for rental (together with the associated buildings
services and support facilities) as at 31 March 2015 was
determined based on a valuation carried out by Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent professional
valuer.

The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the
associated building services and support facilities) falls within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and is determined using the
income capitalisation approach by discounting the expected rental
income using capitalisation rate adjusted for the quality and
location of the buildings.

During the year, additions to furniture and equipment of the
Company financed by a new finance lease were HK$9.4 million
(2014: Nil). At the end of the reporting period, the net book value of
furniture and equipment held under finance lease of the Company
was HK$8.0 million (2014 Nil).

13 Y% - MBREHE @

ff

O]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

R200045 822 H - BRKERFN W EZE
B 2 B4t H — 08 2 7058 R AR B 408 A 3t BR
8969 5% 2 £ 3 - — IR 14 13 )4 (B & 1,000 78
7T EAHR504 -

200045824 R - ARRIEBEEEZER AT
#rl— oA (o8 HED - RiEZSE
has - AR BRERIERA R D RBHRME R
T8 A B 8969 57 H i — R {7 + 3t ([ #4758 &)
1) RAREALNEES o

BUEBFURER  REERERARMHZ
DEBLHFA - DHEHHB 20005 H22H
AEET S0 FRRIL IR ©

FDER T R T B & B B I IR E TR B
ZEEFRB OB LZER

R201563A318 - HAEFELHENEFHA
AEECERBENEFREEIRRE) B
63.56 BB L (20145 : 61.80fBH L) - B
BEZAKREER2721EE T(2014%F :
2823fRETT) - REFHEHE BT GER
R B TR E IR RHE) 10 20154 3 A 31
B2 RABETHBELEXGERSHEEREY
XERE (BB BERARETHE -

FAEFELEZBFCERBRZBFTRSES
RRE) Z AN BEBRARBESRTZE
=& DERBBABRCTAEE  TER
REREREFT 2 EXRIMBELRRBEZER
LR BRI S WA R H

FARRBAFBERERPEDIRE ZHM
RFREHIA0OEEIT(2014F &) - R®E
R ARARERERERE 2HGMERE
ZBREEA800 BT (20144 : &) °

ERAYEEEEERAT
&35 2014/15
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14 |Investments in securities

14 BHRE

Non-current assets FRBEE
Held-to-maturity investments (note a) A ZZIMAKA (Maka) 655,001,734 483,081,962
Current assets REEE
Held-to-maturity investments (note a) #HEZE|HHKXE (Kista) 63,191,192 203,975,407
Investments at fair value through BARBEFABRZERE

profit or loss (note b) (Hf3EDb) 302,340,983 287,037,756
N 365,532,175 491,013,163

1,020,533,909 974,095,125

(a) Held-to-maturity investments

Listed fixed interest debt securities in & £ B & 5 B &K E 5

(a) BEZIHPERE

Hong Kong 670,521,621 459,114,251
Unlisted debt securities ELEMEBES 47,671,305 227,943,118
Net book amount BRmFE 718,192,926 687,057,369
The net book amount is analysedas ~ BREDFEDTAT :

follows:

Maturing over one year R —5 LA 21 51 655,001,734 483,081,962

Maturing within one year R—FRE|H 63,191,192 203,975,407

718,192,926 687,057,369

Market value of listed debt securities ~ FHEH B S HE 673,805,404 459,170,891
Market value of unlisted but quoted ~ JE LT 1EBREBEEEESH

debt securities Z A 47,397,900 227,418,420

721,203,304 686,589,311
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14 Investments in securities (continued) 14

(a) Held-to-maturity investments (continued) (a)

The held-to-maturity investments represent bonds with
maturities ranging from 1 to 54 months (2014: 1 to 60
months) and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars (“USD") and Renminbi (“RMB™). The
market values of listed and unlisted but quoted debt
securities classified as held-to-maturity are based upon
the market price of the debt securities quoted over-the-
counter. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end
of the reporting period is the carrying amount of held-to-
maturity investments.

The Company has not reclassified any financial assets
measured at amortised cost during the year (2014: Nil).

(b) Investments at fair value through profit or loss (b)

Listed fixed interest debt securities:  _FHEFEF EEKES ¢

— in Hong Kong — BHBEN
— outside Hong Kong — HBEH
Unlisted but quoted fixed interest

debt securities & 75

I L EARER TN E AL
2%

HBERE @)
BEZIHARE (@)

BEZRINHAREAENET  ETRAR
MBEMNZES  HIHHEB1IES4EA
TEHEQROAFE1E60MEA) - nEAEE
EXZHHB 2z F A ELTEAREES
BHEZMBENREBEFBIN S ZHRE
BEE - NBEHRRGFEZEAEERR
ERAZEHHAKREZERE -

FRARRBL EAR IR B AT ELZ
CREEENFHE (20145 « &) -

BAREBEFABREZRE

2015 2014
HK$ HK$

BT 78T
(restated)
(#e&=351))

4,849,603 14,907,752
290,090,949 264,618,181

7,400,431 7,511,823

302,340,983 287,037,756

15 Trade and other receivables 15

FE W BR R % L At BB WL TR

Trade receivables JrE U BR 3R

B AR FUR B RS
(FfE 15(d))

Less: Provision for impairment of
receivables (note 15(d))

6,502,766 13,063,893

(1,421,649) (4,869,891)

Trade receivables — net FEULBR TN — F 58
Prepayments, deposits and other TR FIE - RE A
receivables H b e W FRIB

5,081,117 8,194,002

12,853,804 19,438,119

17,934,921 27,632,121
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

All prepayments, deposits and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses by
the Company within one year, except for the amount of
HK$1,550,073 (2014: HK$3,195,124) which is expected to
be recovered after one year.

(a) The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values and are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

(b) The credit terms given to the customers range from
0-30 days.

(c) As at 31 March 2015, trade receivables of
HK$3,080,121 (2014: HK$3,902,868) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default. The aging analysis of these trade
receivables and net of provision for impairment is as
follows:

15 FEWEBRA K H{th FE U FIE (@)

BR T R#01,550,0738 7T (20144F : 3195124
BT Z IR —FRRESN - RNAF]
FRBTEN IR - e M E A YRR TEH
AR—FARKROEER B/ -

() FEWERR N E M A ROR 2 R (A
BMEEANRBEMRE  LABETA

(b) BTEFZEEHR/OEI0K -

(c) M201563A31H ' fE W &K &
3,080,121 7L (2014 4 : 3,902,868
BT EBHEY ERE - ZFEFIR
W N E T EAN SR A RS ek 2 B AL
BP o ZERWIRZR KL EMBERE
BmZRE DT

Neither pastdue nor impaired  A@MRE 2000996 4291134
Less than one month past due BEIR 1A A 2,724,597 2,450,509
One to three months past due BE1-31@A 321,625 731,595
Over three months past due BEA3E A E 33,899 720,764
R . . 3,080,121 3.902,868
5,081,117 8,194,002

(d) The Company has assessed if there is any
impairment on an individual customer basis based
on aging analysis of trade receivables balance,
historical bad debt rates, repayment patterns,
customer credit worthiness and industry trend
analysis. As at 31 March 2015, the amount of the
provision for impairment of trade receivables was
HK$1,421,649 (2014: HK$4,869,891).
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i BEEERE  BEFRSR  BPE
EROTEBEDMAFNEEEE [
RlEFHIRE - R201593 A 31
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BIT) e
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15

16

17

Trade and other receivables (continued) 15

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

FE Ui BR FX &% E it FE W FRIE ()

At the beginning of the year F1 4,869,891 6,562,422
Impairment loss recognised R EEE 682,916 991,006
Impairment loss written back OB B 18 AR B B R IE (562,464) (1,867,683)
Uncollectible amounts written off FEEHN AT UL Bl SR IE (3,568,694) (815,854)
At the end of the year FR 1,421,649 4,869,891

(e) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of
the reporting period is the fair value of each class of
trade and other receivables mentioned above. The
Company does not hold any collateral as security
other than rental deposits and guarantees from
tenants.

Balances with group companies 16

Balances with group companies are unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand. The amounts approximate
their fair values and are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

Cash and bank balances 17

(e) RBMEHR FAENESEER
5 Ay AL 25 X8 LA B R % EL b R L
RELZRREE AARLERFH
R P E S RIERINZ EAE @
YEIRRE o

KB T 2R
SEAR 2 EHARER 28 RARE
AEER - ZEFORRAD R BEME - I

ABTTREL »

RERBTER

Cash at bank and in hand
Bank deposits with maturity under

IRITEFRFEAS
TR 3EAANEIE
three months at acquisition RITIF K

74,058,742 68,140,778

28,236,518 32,048,070

Cash and bank balances B MIRTTHET

102,295,260 100,188,848

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances
approximate their fair values and are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

Re MRTEFZREERE AR EEN
& WABTTRER -
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18

19

20

12

Trade and other payables

18 BMARRREMESRE

Trade payables FEABR IR 48,498,298 49,539,086
Other payables and accruals HEMERIEREGER 28,906,780 34,232,247
77,405,078 83,771,333

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables
approximate their fair values and are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

Rental and other deposits
Included in rental deposits are amounts of
HK$46,410,047 (2014: HK$40,390,980) which are not

expected to be settled within one year.

Obligations under a finance lease

At 31 March 2015, the Company had obligations under a
finance lease repayable as follows:

FERRR A M B AT SR 2 lREEEE A
SRMEENRE  WABTREN -

19 HAFZERAEMESE

HPZeBRERITER —FREN 2K
T8 46,410,047 7% 7T (20144 : 40,390,980

BIL) °
20 MEMEKE

R2015F3 A31H * AR AR E HE &

2 BRIET

2015 2014
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum  minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments  payments
REHE BEHE HEES wEEE
ARRE R#EE [(FEE R sEE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Within1year 1¥W 2077328 2107080 - -
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FZB2ER 2,086,322 2,107,080 - -
After 2 years but within 5years ~ 2F#E{ES5FER 3,672,833 3,687,390 = -
... 5759155 5794470 - - -
7,836,483 7,901,550 - -
Less: total future interest B REA B X H4a%E
expenses (65,067) =
Present value of lease HEFERE
obligations 7,836,483 =
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21

22

Development maintenance fund

It represents a fund received by the Company in
accordance with the terms of a project agreement entered
into among the Company, Hong Kong Cyberport
Development Holdings Limited (“the immediate holding
company”), HKCAD, Pacific Century Cyberworks Limited
(now renamed as PCCW Limited) and Cyber-Port Limited
on 17 May 2000 (the “Project Agreement”). Pursuant to
the Project Agreement, the purpose of the fund is for
upkeep and maintenance of the common
telecommunications, media and information technology
facilities available to the tenants and visitors (the “Shared
Cyberport facilities™).

Upon acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the
costs of the acquired assets will be transferred from the
Development Maintenance Fund (“DMF") account to the
Capital Reserve account in accordance with the
Company's accounting policy.

During the year, Shared Cyberport facilities of
HK$9,790,279 (2014: HK$5,406,640) were acquired and
funded by the DMF. Accordingly, this amount has been
transferred from the DMF to Capital Reserve account.

Facilities maintenance fund

On 5 September 2006, the Company, HKCAD, and the
immediate holding company entered into a third
agreement to amend the Project Agreement of the
Cyberport Project with PCCW Limited and Cyber-Port
Limited. Pursuant to the third agreement, a maintenance
fund of HK$50,000,000 for the purpose of maintenance
and upgrading of the Cyberport Portion was received by
the Company (“Facilities Maintenance Fund”, “FMF").
Upon acquisition of the assets, the cost of the replaced
assets will be transferred from the FMF account to the
Capital Reserve account in accordance with the
Company's accounting policy.

During the year, building services and support facilities of
HK$10,391,226 (2014: Nil) were acquired and funded by
the FMF. Accordingly, this amount has been transferred
from the FMF to Capital Reserve account.
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23 Deferred income

23 EEW

Notes to the Financial Statements B #8 R M5

23 Deferred income (continued)

23 EIEUES ()

2015
Government grants Sponsorship
B € -]
Property, Property,
plant and plant and
equipment Sub-total  equipment
ERE: 1 ERE- 1
SET gt SET
HK$ HK$ HK$
Cost S
At 1 April 2014 R2014%4A1H 2,141,314 - 2141314 786,442 2,927,756
Additions bl - 882,000 882,000 - 882,000
Write off of projects completed — FT8I5ER (2,141,314) - (2,141,314) (786,442) (2,927,756)
At3IMarch2015 — W205¥3ASIA -.....582000 882000 ~.....882,000
Accumulated amortisation Rt
At 1 April 2014 R201454A1H (2,081,754) - (2,081,754)  (786,442) (2,868,196)
Credited to statement of FAZEKRE
comprehensive income (59,560)  (230,279)  (289,839) - (289,839)
Write off of projects completed &I 38 2,141,314 - 2141314 786,442 2,927,756
At31Marcn2015  W2015%3ASIA - (230279)  (230279) <. (230.279)
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2015 201563 A31AR - 651,721 651,721 - 651,721
12 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
Annual Report 2014/15

2014
Government grants Sponsorship
e 28
Property, Property,
plant and plant and
equipment Others Sub-total  equipment
PEG Hith Nt PEY
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Cost A
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4A1R 2,141,314 107,187  2,248501 786,442 3,034,943
Additions =0 = 220,423 220,423 = 220,423
Write off of projects completed 58|52 7 4 - (327610)  (327,610) - (327610)
At 31 March 2014 M2014E3A31H 2,141,314 - 2141314 786,442 2,927,756
Accumulated amortisation EHE &
At 1 April 2013 R2013F4A1R (1,715,353) (78,171) (1,793524)  (733.361) (2,526,385)
Credited to statement of FAZENER
comprehensive income (366,401)  (249.439)  (615,840) (53,081)  (668921)
Write off of projects completed 5t 272k i = 327,610 327,610 - 327,610
At3LMarch2014 ~~  W2014%3A31A (208L754) . (208L75) | (786442) (2868196)
Carrying amount EREE
At 31 March 2014 M2014%3A31H 59,560 = 59,560 = 59,560

Note: Government grants are subject to terms and conditions specified
in the project agreements. Unused balances of government grants
are required to be repaid to the Government of the HKSAR upon
completion of the projects and submission of the final accounts.

24 Share capital

No. of shares

RHO#E VSnE (e

PYAE © BRAT B Bh & S5t & 5 rs o 46 76 2 IR R AR 14
R e REHEIFER RRZORER B & - BUSHE)
& 2 RARBRERETBFEBUT

24 A

2015 2014
No. of shares

Ordinary shares, issued and ERTRBEZLER

fully paid

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company's residual assets.

ERRFAEATRBRARE RS - I
ARARBZBRAE LR EBRRNESR
—ERER - RARFZRREEMS
A& RIS ZERREER -

R o 123



Notes to the Financial Statements B ## R &

25 Note to the statement of cash flows

Reconciliation of loss for the year to net cash generated
from operations:

25 BRERBRME
\\\\\\ SEEBHELRSZHE

Loss for the year FNEE (57,582,934) (81,825,225)
Adjustments for: P
Depreciation e 148,376,683 178,435,825
Realisation of deferred income BEIEW B3R (289,839) (668,921)
Interest income from REZIHAKE
held-to-maturity investments, MEUW AR R E
net of amortised premium (16,271,226) (9.656,393)
Interest income from investments at AR BEFABZZEKE
fair value through profit or loss FEHA (8,111,601) (4.367,602)
Net realised/unrealised gains on BARBEFABEIRE
investments at fair value through B#EREH WG
profit or loss F R (2,108,451) (4,161,489)
Interest income on bank deposits RITEAF B HA (217,217) (2,252,254)
Provision/(Reversal of provision) for ~ FEURBR FORBE B,
impairment of receivables, net (B mIfs) 558 120,452 (876,677)
Loss on disposals of property, plant ~ HE&E¥E - BERREZ
and equipment, net B85 R 77,441 265,485
Finance costs &R 28,190 -
(Gain)/loss on exchange, net bE 5 (Wzs) BB F 5 (26,692) 1,676,455
Operating profit before working capital &8 & & B ERT 2 &%
changes ot ) 63,994,806 76,569,204
Increase in deferred rental receivables iEZE f& Yt FE & 18 N (274,098)  (4,569,056)
Decrease in inventories FERD 26,964 23,646
Decrease in trade and other receivables J& U B 2k 5 E th e Uz I8 5 > 11,251,961 2,292,292
Decrease in amounts due from fellow  fEUR R Z BB A B R IE R/ 4
subsidiaries 77,503 1,169,026
Decrease in trade and other payables  F& < BR 2 5 EL th & (< BRI > (26,348,686) (8,814,285)
Increase in rental and other deposits ~ HFix& Rk H iz 4,306,904 7.947.134
Net cash generated from operations — &&EEEATEL ZIRE/FH 53,035,354 74,617,961
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26 ARFEEWHES

26 Future minimum rental receipts receivable

The future aggregate minimum rental receipts receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

EYHESERIAT

In the first year F—F 189,210,053 171,781,050
Inthe second to fifth years inclusive ~ £ -_EZFAF (BIEEREMRE) 142,159,031 216,966,997
After five years RF% 1,053,334 5457424

REBTIHBEEEHE  AREFTRE

332,422,418 394,205,471

The Company's operating leases are for terms ranging

from 1to 6 years (2014: 1to 6 years). FEOFERE(2014F : 1FE6HF) »

27 Commitments 27 A&

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2015 not  (a) R 201543 A 318 i& K E B Rk + &

W2 ARNEREEWNT -

provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Contracted for EET4Y

9,133,938

Authorised but not contracted for ERERRTH 1,341,708 16,500,000

AREZEERENET 2 BENNTF]

10,475,646 16,500,000

(b) At 31 March 2015, the total future minimum lease (b) MR2015F3A31H  RETAIHHEZ L

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are EHE - ARRKEHEENKAERAT
payable as follows:

B ERRRRIE
maintenance service fee payable RERKEHA

Information technology facilities

(note) (H¥&E)
In the first year FE—F 7,135,290 12,520,414
Inthe second to fifth yearsinclusive ~ F_ZFRAF(BEEEMRF) - 7,135,290

7,135,290 19,655,704

Note: The commitment in respect of the information technology facilities
maintenance service fee payable is subject to certain adjustments
in accordance with the terms of the System Operation Contract.

EREBANZFRIERETHE -
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28 Related party transactions

29

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the
HKSAR via Financial Secretary Incorporated. In
accordance with revised HKAS 24, Related party
disclosures, issued by HKICPA, government-related
entities and their subsidiaries, directly or indirectly
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
the Government of HKSAR are defined as related parties
of the Company. On that basis, related parties include the
immediate holding company and its subsidiaries (other
than the Company), other government-related entities
and their subsidiaries, other entities and corporations in
which the Company is able to control or exercise
significant influence and key management personnel of
the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, approximately 3%
(2014: 3%) of the Company's revenue are rental income,
building management income and other facilities income
derived from the Government of HKSAR and other
government-related entities. All these services are
conducted in the normal course of business and in
accordance with the Company's pricing policy.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, for the purpose of
the related party transaction disclosures, remuneration of
the Directors of the Company is disclosed in note 7.

Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to

conform with the current year's presentation. Details of
the reclassification are set out in note 2(a).
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